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FLY TO WIN
■ Earned $562 million pre-tax income

■ Captured 112% of industry average revenue per

available seat mile

■ Attracted 47.6% of revenue from business ticket sales

■ Reduced distribution cost as a percent of sales

■ Motivated 54% of travelers to choose an eTicket

■ Placed eService Centers in 60 cities

■ Booked more than $320 million in revenue through

www.continental.com

FUND THE FUTURE
■ Reached agreement to acquire all CAL.A shares

■ Maintained cash balances of at least $1 billion, ending

year at $1.4 billion

■ Bought back stock worth $449 million in open market

■ Prepaid over $400 million of debt

■ F i n a n ced $2.7 bi ll i on at an avera ge ra te of 7 . 4 5 % ,

including aircraft deliveries through third quarter 2001

MAKE RELIABILITY A REALITY
■ Ra n ked No. 1 in on - time arrivals among all U. S . a i rl i n e s

■ Completed 98.3% of all flights scheduled

■ Named No. 1 in Customer Satisfaction on Long Haul

and Short Haul Flights by J.D. Power and Associates

■ Paid on-time bonuses (worth $785 per employee) in 11

out of 12 months

■ Delivered on our Customer First promises and

implemented new service recovery procedures

■ In trodu ced into servi ce the all - n ew 767-400/200

WORKING TOGETHER
■ Climbed to the No. 18 position on Fortune’s list of “The

100 Best Companies to Work For in America.” Placed on

list for third straight year

■ Del ivered on promise to bring wages to indu s try standard

■ Completed company-wide health initiative with no

increase in health care costs to employees

■ Successfully completed and ratified four-year agreement

with the Flight Attendants

■ Gave away another 17 Ford Explorers (Eddie Bauer

Edition with taxes paid) under the employee perfect

attendance program (total of 83 since 1996)

■ Improved work environment by completing 27

breakroom remodeling projects in CLE,IAH, EWR

2000 Accomplishments



After six years of working the Go

F o rw a rd Plan, Continental Airlines

has secured its position at the 

top of the industry by delivering

consistently high-quality, on-time,

passenger-friendly service. 

ontime
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Year Ended Decem ber 31,

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6

Operating Revenue  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9,899 $ 8,639 $ 7,927 $ 7,194 $ 6,347

Total Operating Expenses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,215 8,039 7,226 6,478 5,822

Operating Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 684 600 701 716 525

Income Before Income Taxes,

Minority Interest, Cumulative Effect of

Accounting Changes, Extraordinary

Charges and Special Items1  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 562 553 770 640 556

Income Before Cumulative Effect of

Acco u n ting Ch a n ges and Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge  . . 348 488 387 389 325

Net Income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 342 455 383 385 319

Basic Earnings per Share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5.62 $ 6.54 $ 6.34 $ 6.65 $ 5.75

Diluted Earnings per Share  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5.45 $ 6.20 $ 5.02 $ 4.99 $ 4.17

Diluted Earnings per Share Adjusted for

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes,

Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ges and Special Items1  . . . . . . $ 5.45 $ 4.61 $ 6.03 $ 5.03 $ 5.21

1 S pecial items inclu de a gain on the sale of n on - s tra tegic assets of $9 mill i on in 2000, a fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss of $81 mill i on and a net gain on 

the sale of n on - s tra tegic assets of $326 mill i on in 1999, a fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss of $122 mill i on in 1998, and a fleet dispo s i ti on ch a r ge of $ 1 2 8

m i ll i on in 1996.
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Financial Highlights
(in millions of dollars,except per share data)



2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 1 9 9 8 1 9 9 7 1 9 9 6

Revenue passengers (thousands)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,896 45,540 43,625 41,210 38,332

Revenue passenger miles (millions) (a) . . . . . . . . . . . 64,161 60,022 53,910 47,906 41,914

Available seat miles (millions) (b) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86,100 81,946 74,727 67,576 61,515

Passenger load factor (c)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74.5% 73.2% 72.1% 70.9% 68.1%

Breakeven passenger load factor (d)(e)  . . . . . . . . . . . 66.3% 64.7% 61.6% 60.1% 60.7%

Passenger revenue per available seat mile . . . . . . . . . 9.84¢ 9.12¢ 9.23¢ 9.29¢ 9.01¢

Operating cost per available seat mile (e)  . . . . . . . . . 9.76¢ 8.99¢ 8.89¢ 9.04¢ 8.75¢

Average yield per revenue passenger mile (f)  . . . . . . 13.20¢ 12.45¢ 12.79¢ 13.11¢ 13.22¢

Average price per gallon of fuel  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86.69¢ 47.31¢ 46.83¢ 62.91¢ 60.92¢

Fuel gallons consumed (millions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,537 1,542 1,487 1,357 1,228

Actual aircraft in fleet at end of period  . . . . . . . . . . 371 363 363 337 317

(a) The number of scheduled miles flown by revenue passengers.

(b) The number of seats available for passengers multiplied by the number of scheduled miles those seats are flown.

(c) Revenue passenger miles divided by available seat miles.

(d) The percentage of seats that must be occupied by revenue passengers in order for the airline to breakeven on income before income taxes, excluding

nonrecurring charges,nonoperating items and other special items.

(e) 1999,1998 and 1996 exclude a fleet disposition/impairment loss totaling $81 million,$122 million and $128 million, respectively.

(f) The average revenue received for each mile a revenue passenger is carried.
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Operating Statistics
( j e t o p eratio n s o n ly, e xcludin g r egio nal j e t s o p e rat e d b y C o nti n e n t a l E x p r e s s )



Just when you started thinking that things really couldn’t

get any better...they did.

2000 was a truly outstanding year for us, no matter how

you care to measure it.

We gen era ted record revenue and exceeded our own record

operational performance while we increased earnings per

s h a re (excluding special item s ) . Ca pping those ach i evem en t s

was our agreement with Northwest Airlines to repurchase

our Class A stock held by them and to reclassify the Class A

stock into Class B stock, thereby freeing us to pursue our

own destiny.

For many, m a ny ye a rs Con ti n ental has had va ri o u s

con tro lling stock h o l ders who of ten have cl o u ded our

f utu re .G oing all the way back to Con ti n en t a l ’s acqu i s i ti on

by Texas Air Corpora ti on in 1982, we’ve had a su cce s s i on

of con tro lling stock h o l ders including Texas Ai r, Ai r

Pa rtn ers , Air Ca n ada and Nort hwest Ai rl i n e s .

Now, for the first ti m e , a ll stock h o l ders wi ll have an

equal voi ce and equal tre a tm en t . Our em p l oyees wi ll

know that our agenda inc ludes only what’s best for them,

our customers and the broad-based owners of our common

stock. We all now will share a common goal and a common

approach to success. We only win when we all win together

— employees,customers and stockholders.

That approach has been responsible for our record six

straight years of profitability and success. We’ve put our

trust and con f i den ce in each other and it has paid us all hu ge

dividends. We continue to grow the gap between ourselves

and our competitors on key metrics for financial perfor-

mance,customer satisfaction and employee relations.

Gordon Bethune

Chairman of the Board and 

Chief Executive Officer
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To Our Co-workers, Customers and Stockholders



Our employees have created a culture and atmosphere of

dignity and respect for one another. That foundation has

put us among Fortune magazine’s “100 Best Companies to

Work For in Am eri c a” for the past three ye a rs . No other

airline, save Southwest Airlines, has ever achieved such

long-term recognition.

For our customers,that meant six straight years of award

winning customer service — no other airline has ever

ach i eved this con s i s ten t ly high degree of c u s tom er sati s f acti on

and public recognition of operational excellence. J.D. Power

has awarded us the top customer satisfaction award four of

the past five years. This year we won both long-haul and

s h ort-haul categori e s , s hut ting out the com peti ti on en ti rely.

Our stock h o l ders have re a ped the rew a rds of our co ll ective

a pproach to winning with 23 con s ec utive prof i t a ble qu a rters

and six straight years of profitable performance. We’ve used

our earnings to repurchase millions of our shares, thereby

increasing the earnings of the remaining shares.

We know that by ensuring that our employees,customers

and stockholders all win or lose together, we can continue

to maintain success for each of us.

GO FORWARD PLAN � For the past six years, we have

proven that what gets measured and rewarded gets don e .

The Go Forw a rd Plan has provi ded us a practi c a l , m e a su ra bl e

and flex i ble way to get all of our co - workers in our huddle and

communicate the direction we want to take the Company.

Its four cornerstones — Fly to Win (our market plan), Fund

the Future (our financial plan), Ma ke Rel i a bi l i ty A Re a l i ty

(our produ ct plan) and Working Toget h er (our peop l e

plan) — are as relevant today as they were six years ago.

In the pages ahead we’ ll su m m a ri ze what has been

accomplished and what is to come.

Greg Brenneman

President and 

Chief Operating Officer
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F L Y T O W I N � focuses us on meeting the needs

of the marketplace. For the past six years,

Continental has concentrated on flying to places

people want to go in a clean, safe and reliable

manner. We add to our product only those things

that customers value such as new airplanes with

large baggage bins, an award-winning frequent

flyer program and good food. We let customers

buy tickets the way they want to, while using 

technology to eliminate non-value-added costs.

In short, we run an airline the way you would run

an airline.



win
fly to



F L Y T O W I N � We continue to deliver industry-leading

financial re sults by levera ging our hubs in New York , Ho u s ton ,

Cl eveland and Gu a m . F lying to places people want to go has

a ll owed us to con s i s ten t ly grow our opera ti on faster than our

com peti tors while maintaining attractive profit margi n s .

The results of our efforts include:

■ growing our revenue from $5.8 billion in 1995 to $9.9 

billion in 2000 

■ firmly establishing Continental as the number one player

in the tra n s con ti n ental U. S .m a rket and the strong nu m ber

two player to Latin America

■ offering more transatlantic destinations out of New York

than any other carrier in history

■ doubling the cities served out of Cleveland while making

it the fastest growing hub in the United States

■ increasing the percentage of our revenue from high-yield

business passengers

In addition, our unit-revenue premium to the industry

continues to increase and averaged 112% in 2000 — 3.5

points higher than 1999.

Over the co u rse of 2 0 0 1 , we look forw a rd to finishing

our en ti re $1 bi ll i on New York Global Gatew ay proj ect at

New a rk In tern a ti onal Ai rport . The Global Gatew ay proj ect

wi ll all ow us to do u ble the passen ger vo lume thro u gh

New a rk over the next several ye a rs . The proj ect cen ter-

p i eces are a new terminal and intern a ti onal arrival hall that
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(Left to Right) Houston MD-80 First Of ficer Roscoe Edwards ■ 767-400 

BusinessFirst cabin featuring 2-1-2 configuration ■ Guam International Service

Manager Gerard Damian ■ Cleveland Lead Customer Service Agent James Johnson

■ Continental Express First Officer Marco Johnson and Captain James Nelson ■

Newark Customer Service Agent Diana Giron



wi ll all ow us to add many more intern a ti onal flights and

a qu i ck 30-minute mon ora i l / train con n ecti on from the

a i rport to Ma n h a t t a n’s Penn Stati on or to the World Trade

Cen ter. The proj ect also inclu des new roadw ays , a park i n g

ga ra ge , a new arrival hall and many new opera ti ons bu i l d-

i n gs to provi de our co - workers with the tools they need to

do their job s .

We also look forward to our new international services

f rom New a rk to Hong Kon g ; S t a n s ted , E n gl a n d ; a n d

Buenos Aires, Argentina,that will be launched in 2001.

Our alliance par tners allow us to provide a broader net-

work for our customers. We are particularly pleased with

the extension of our alliance with Northwest to 2025. The

Northwest alliance has been good for both companies and

for our joint customers.

The Internet and electronic tickets are rapidly changing

h ow our custom ers want to buy ti ckets and manage thei r

travel ex peri en ce . This is a po s i tive for both Con ti n en t a l

and our custom ers as hu n d reds of m i ll i ons of do ll a rs of

n on - va lu e - ad ded costs can be rem oved from the curren t

d i s tri buti on sys tem .

We plan to be able to el ectron i c a lly tra n s fer ti cket s

b ack and forth from Con ti n ental and several other major

c a rri ers by the end of 2 001 . Cu s tom ers wi ll find this very

a ppe a l i n g, and the proce s s wi ll help pave the way for a

complete elimination of paper tickets, thereby again saving

millions of dollars of non-value-added costs.
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FUND THE FUTURE � lays the foundation for 

p rofitable growth. This includes strengthening our

balance sheet, replacing our older aircraft with the

newest fleet in the industry, and building and

financing our hubs in New York, Houston, Cleveland

and Guam. We also carry enough cash to see us

through tough times while returning excess cash

to stockholders. Our solid operational perf o rm a n c e

gives us a strong platform for accessing capital.

The entire Newark Global Gateway project has

been financed at an interest rate of just 6.6%, 

and the airline has already locked-in financing for

a i rcraft deliveries through the third quarter 2001.

Continental’s financial performance continues to

be consistent and reliable – just like our flights.

Newark Senior Manager of Corporate Real Estate Ed O’Sullivan 

and Program Principal Richard Smyth



In 2001, we’ll also provide web-based solutions for each

of our three basic types of customers. Our most extremely

pri ce - s en s i tive custom ers wi ll con ti nue to move aw ay

from the trad i ti onal con s o l i d a tors as they take adva n t a ge

of web specials on www. con ti n en t a l . com and on sites 

l i ke Hotwire.com. Loyal Continental customers will see a

dramatic improvement in our web site to include services

such as frequent flyer redemption and improved account

information. Finally, we expect Orbitz.com — the airline

co-sponsored web site — to be operational mid-year for

those customers who want an unbiased comparison of

inventory available on all carriers.

FUND THE FUTURE � In spite of the highest fuel prices

since the Gulf War, we generated $562 million in pretax

income in 2000 and have delivered 23 straight quarters of

profit. We also generated significant cash flow and ended

2000 with $1.4 billion in cash. This marks the fifth consec-

utive year we have exceeded our $1 bi ll i on cash balance target .

We certainly retain our financial strength,and have done so

despite record fuel prices.

We also have been very aggre s s ive abo ut paying down

debt and retu rning cash to our stock h o l ders . In 2000, we

ad ded $272 mill i on to our stock buyb ack progra m ,

bri n ging the total to $1.5 bi ll i on . We com p l eted $1.2 bi ll i on

of this buyb ack by ye a r- en d . On Ja nu a ry 22, 2 0 0 1 , we

bo u ght back $450 mill i on of our Class A shares from

Nort hwest and recl a s s i f i ed all Class A shares into 1.32

Class B share s . We now have one class of s tock (CAL) and

12



believe this simplified ownership structure will benefit all

stockholders. You can expect us to use half of future net

i n com e ,a ll the proceeds of p u rchases of our stock by em p l oyee s

and any cash generated from sales of non-strategic assets to

repurchase our stock on an ongoing basis. We also pre-paid

more than $400 million of debt during 2000 from our strong

cash flow.

We con ti nu ed to use our cred i bi l i ty in the financial 

m a rkets to finance new airplanes and new fac i l i ties in our

hu b s . Du ring 2000, we financed $2.7 bi ll i on in debt at an

avera ge interest ra te of 7 . 4 5 % , giving us the cost stru ctu re

to com pete with anyone in our indu s try.

As a re su l t , Con ti n en t a l ’s avera ge jet fleet age is on ly 6.7

ye a rs , one of the yo u n gest in the indu s try. The net ef fect 

is that our custom ers now get a mu ch bet ter produ ct at 

an overa ll lower cost to Con ti n en t a l . In fact , the fuel 

ef f i c i ency of this new all-Boeing fleet is the best lon g -term

hedge we have against higher oil prices. In addition, we

recorded a $44 million gain from fuel-hedging strategies for

the year.

We took our first del iveries in 2000 of the all - n ew

Boeing 767-400 and the 767-200 airc ra f t . These airp l a n e s ,

a l ong with the 16 Boeing 777s we have , wi ll all ow us to
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(Left to Right) Senior Vice Pre s i d e n t - A i r p o r t Services Mark Erwin and Senior Vi c e

P re s i d e n t - Technical Operations George Mason ■ Senior Vice Pre s i d e n t - S c h e d u l i n g

Glen Hauenstein and Executive Vice President-Operations C.D. McLean ■ S e n i o r

Vice President-Human Resources Mike Campbell and Vice Pre s i d e n t - D o m e s t i c

Revenue Management Leon Kinloch ■ Manager of Diversity and Fair Employment

Practices Kim Harris, Senior Director of International Business Development

Ai-Phuong Dang and Managing Director of Financial Systems Dan Morales ■

Senior Vice President-Sales and Distribution Bonnie Reitz



MAKE RELIABILITY A REALITY � While our 

competitors have focused on deals and coping

with internal conflicts, we have focused on ru n n i n g

a great airline. We are proud of our product. We

get you where you want to go — safely, on time

and with your bags — better than anyone else.

Our product is the best in our industry, and w e

have a trophy case full of awards to prove it.

The gap between our per f o rmance and our

competitors’ is increasing, which allows us to

increase our earnings. As long as all 54,300 of 

us stay committed to working as a team, no one

can stop us.



reliability
make

a reality



reti re all of our DC-10s by 2003. In ad d i ti on , we ordered

15 brand new Boeing 757-300s, wh i ch along with the

737-800s and 737-900s we curren t ly have on order, a re

p a rt of our plan to reti re all our MD-80s by 2005. We

plan to grow at 5-10% annu a lly su bj ect to ach i eving our

profit margin target s , but our flex i ble fleet plan all ows us

to ad just this growth as appropri a te .

Continental Express continues to rapidly move toward an

all-jet fleet utilizing the fast, quiet Embraer regional jet. At

year-end, Continental Express had 96 of these jets in service

and 178 more on order.

In addition to the completion of the Newark Global

Gateway project in 2001, we will begin construction of a

new 15-gate international terminal and arrivals hall in

Houston. We expect this important project to be completed

by 2003.

M A K E R E L I A B I L I T Y A R E A L I T Y � We continued

to widen the gap between the service level we provide and

that of our com peti tors . Con ti n ental had its best opera ti on a l

year ever in 2000. We did this by focusing on the basics of

our business, ranking first among U.S. airlines for on-time

arrivals. This also means getting you to your destination

safely and with your bags, serving you good food at meal

times and showing you movies and videos on most of our

longer flights.

We continue to make decisions that benefit you, such as
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(Left to Right) Tampico Airport Sales Agent Alejandra Rebullosa ■ Houston Cargo Agent

Antheyl Johnson ■ Cleveland First Officer Mark Wido ■ H o u s t o n Mechanic Marocha

Vishua ■ Houston Airport Sales Agent Janie Zimont



opening new Presidents Clubs, providing you with the

largest closets and bins allowable so you can carry your bags

on the plane,fighting other airlines’ efforts to install baggage

sizers at security checkpoints and buying new airplanes with

better seats to make your flight more comfortable.

No part of our operation improved more in 2000 than did

our operation in Newark. There is no tougher airspace to fly

into than the airspace around New York City. Our 13,000

employees in Newark along with our partners at the FAA

and the Port Authority have worked to make Newark the

preferred airport in the New York/New Jersey region.

All of this focus showed up in the aw a rds we received in

2 0 0 0 . In ad d i ti on to sweeping the J. D. Power Aw a rds for havi n g

the best produ ct , we also won our fo u rth stra i ght Fred d i e

Aw a rd for del ivering the best frequ ent flyer progra m . We also

were on ce again recogn i zed for our Bu s i n e s s F i rst produ ct as

be s t - i n - class by high ly rega rded publ i c a ti ons su ch as The Wa ll

Stre et Jou rn a l , Ni k kei Business and Condé Nast Travel er.

We work very hard to serve you even wh en we make a

m i s t a ke . Th a t’s why we put in a custom er servi ce hotline

( 1 - 8 0 0 - W E - C A R E 2 ) , a bag hotline (1-800-335-BAGS) and a

1-800 em p l oyee hotline so that probl ems can be fixed ri gh t

aw ay. Please help us serve you bet ter by put ting your name and

ad d ress on the inside of your bag. We do not lose many bags ,

but if we happen to lose yo u rs it is usu a lly because the tags came

of f the out s i de of the bag, and there’s no ID inside the bag.

We also need your help in convincing your el ected of f i c i a l s

to spend the high tax on your ti ckets to upgrade the air tra f f i c

con trol sys tem . The sys tem is near gri dl ock and needs to be

con tro ll ed by a re s pon s ive , i n depen dent en ti ty like has been

done in Ca n ada and is being done in the U. K . This wi ll all ow

the hard working men and wom en who serve as air tra f f i c

con tro ll ers to get the incen tives and equ i pm ent they de s erve

and wi ll all ow the publ i c’s ever- growing demand for air travel

to be met safely and ef f i c i en t ly. We recogn i ze that no one wi n s

wh en we’re all caught in gri dl ock in our airports and in the air.
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WORKING TOGETHER � is what really makes a

d i ff e rence at Continental. Employees like coming 

to work because they know their contribution is

valued and that they are consistently treated 

with dignity and respect. They know that they will

receive industry standard pay and benefits, plus

share in the upside when our customers win 

(with on-time bonuses) and our investors win (with

p ro f i t -sharing checks). Working Together we have

taken our airline from the bottom of our industry

and turned it into one of the best companies in

any industry. No one can beat us as long as we

continue to Work Together — it works for us.

Houston Flight Attendants Tammy Mauzey, James Jones Jr., Joy

Wiitala, Renee Guillemot and Andie Doherty



together
working



WORKING TOGETHER � Working toget h er works for

us! While our com peti tors have been spending mill i on s

reaccommodating passengers when they run late or cancel

flights due to labor unrest and internal fighting, we have

been treating each other with dignity and respect. Our

focus remains on setting direction and then letting every-

one do their job based on what benefits the customer and

the Com p a ny, wi t h o ut interferen ce from managem en t .

Being named to Fortune magazine’s “100 Best Companies to

Work For in America” list three years in a row says it all.

We continue to provide forums where we listen to the

feedback from our co-workers, and we continue to deliver

on our promises.

By July 2000, we fully implemented the promise we made

in July 1997 that all of our co-workers would be at industry

standard pay. We made this promise because we refuse to

finance our Company on the backs of our co-workers.

Con ti n ental also began implem en ting a plan to bring ben ef i t s

to industry standard,and we’ll continue to adjust pay as the

market changes and on the amendable date of contracts for

em p l oyees who are repre s en ted by labor union s . In ad d i ti on ,

we continue to reward everyone with on-time bonuses and

profit sharing so when our customers and investors win, we

a ll wi n . In 2000, the profe s s i onal men and wom en of
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(Left to Right) Houston Sous Chef Victor Diaz and Executive Chef Gerry McLoughlin 

of Chelsea Catering ■ Cleveland Flight Attendant Maggie Robinson and Newark

Inflight Supervisor B.J. Stroupe ■ Houston Lead Customer Service Agent Susan

Thrasher ■ Houston (Richmond Ave.) Reservation Agent Joanna Couch



Continental earned bonus checks in 11 out of 12 months —

worth $785 per em p l oyee — for on-time performance as

measured by the Department of Transportation.

It is not su rprising that everyone wants to work at

Continental these days and almost no one wants to leave. In

2000, our turnover was an all-time low rate of 5.3%.

Working Toget h er we have made Con ti n ental the best airl i n e

in the worl d . We are all proud to be on the Con ti n ental te a m .

2001 holds much promise for us all.

In January 2001 we completed the NWA transaction and

cel ebra ted our new - found freedom with a sys temwi de

Independence Day celebration for employees.

Our new airplanes,new routes and expanded facilities will

f u rt h er our growth and broaden our appeal to custom ers

and investors in 2001.

Most importantly, we will continue to build on the trust

and con f i den ce we have in each other. We remain com m i t ted

to en su ring that wh en we wi n , we all win — em p l oyee s ,

customers and stockholders alike.

“Work Hard. Fly Right” is more than a catchy slogan. It

exemplifies who we are and what we do.

As we’ve often said before — stick with us, we’re going no

place but up.

Gordon Bethune Greg Brenneman
Chairman of the Board President and Chief 

and Chief Executive Officer Operating Officer
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United States Route System Continental Route

Cooperative Services Operated by Partner Airlines

Seasonal Service

Continental Express



Time Zone Boundary

Continental Destination

Continental/Continental Express Destination

Cooperative Airline Destination (Alaska Airlines, America West,
CommutAir, Gulfstream International, Hawaiian Airlines, Horizon Air 
and Northwest)

CommutAir



International Route System Continental Route

Cooperative Services Operated by Partner Airlines

Seasonal Service



Time Zone Boundary

Continental Destination

Continental/Continental Express Destination
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The fo ll owing discussion may contain forw a rd - l oo k i n g

s t a tem en t s . In con n ecti on therewi t h , please see the cauti on a ry

s t a tem ents con t a i n ed in Con ti n ental Ai rl i n e s , In c .’s An nu a l

Report on Form 10-K for the year en ded Decem ber 31,

2 0 0 0 , wh i ch iden tify important factors that could cause

actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-

l ooking statem en t s . Herei n a f ter, the terms “Con ti n en t a l ”

and the “Com p a ny ” refer to Con ti n ental Ai rl i n e s , In c . a n d

its su b s i d i a ri e s , unless the con text indicates otherwi s e .

Con ti n en t a l ’s re sults of opera ti ons are impacted by sea-

s on a l i ty (the second and third qu a rters are gen era lly

s tron ger than the first and fo u rth qu a rters) as well as

nu m erous other factors that are not nece s s a ri ly season a l ,

i n cluding the ex tent and natu re of com peti ti on from other

a i rl i n e s , em p l oyee job acti ons (including at other airl i n e s ) ,

f a re sale activi ti e s , excise and similar taxe s , ch a n ging level s

of opera ti ons and capac i ty, f u el pri ce s , we a t h er, air tra f f i c

con trol del ays , forei gn currency exch a n ge ra te s , ch a n ges in

reg u l a ti ons and avi a ti on tre a ties and gen eral econ om i c

con d i ti on s . Rising jet fuel pri ces sign i f i c a n t ly impacted

re sults of opera ti ons in 2000. However, m a n a gem en t

bel i eves the Com p a ny is well po s i ti on ed to re s pond to market

con d i ti ons in the event of a su s t a i n ed econ omic down tu rn

due to its flex i ble fleet plan, a strong cash balance and a well

devel oped all i a n ce net work .

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS � The fo ll owing discussion

provi des an analysis of the Com p a ny ’s re sults of opera ti on s

and re a s ons for material ch a n ges therein for the three ye a rs

en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 .

Co m pa ri son of 2000 to 1999. The Com p a ny recorded

con s o l i d a ted net income of $342 mill i on and $455 mill i on

for the ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, re s pec-

tively. Net income in 2000 inclu ded a $6 mill i on after- t a x

gain on the sale of a ri ght of f i rst refusal and the Com p a ny ’s

i nve s tm ent in Am erica West Ho l d i n gs Corpora ti on

( “Am erica West Ho l d i n gs”) and a $6 mill i on ex tra ord i n a ry

ch a r ge from the early rep aym ent of debt . Net income in

1999 was sign i f i c a n t ly impacted by several non - rec u rri n g

i tem s , i n cluding $200 mill i on of a f ter-tax gains on the sale

of the Com p a ny ’s interest in A M A D E U S G l obal Travel

Di s tri buti on S.A. ( “A M A D E U S”) and other inve s tm en t s , a

$50 mill i on after-tax fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss

rel a ted to the early reti rem ent of s everal DC - 1 0 - 3 0 ’s and

o t h er items and the cumu l a tive ef fect of acco u n ti n g

ch a n ges ($33 mill i on , n et of t a xes) rel a ted to the wri te - of f

of pilot training costs and a ch a n ge in the met h od of

acco u n ting for the sale of m i l e a ge credits to parti c i p a ti n g

p a rtn ers in the Com p a ny ’s frequ ent flyer progra m .

Pa s s en ger revenue incre a s ed 14.7%, $1.2 bi ll i on , du ri n g

2000 as com p a red to 1999. The increase was pri n c i p a lly du e

to new tra n s a t l a n tic and Latin Am erican de s ti n a ti on s

s erved as well as an improvem ent in yi eld and load factor.

Ca r go and mail revenue incre a s ed 18.8%, $57 mill i on , i n

2000 as com p a red to 1999 pri m a ri ly due to incre a s ed inter-

n a ti onal vo lumes re su l ting from new market s .

Wa ge s , s a l a ries and rel a ted costs incre a s ed 13.3%, $ 3 3 5

m i ll i on , du ring 2000 as com p a red to 1999, pri m a ri ly due to

a 5.8% increase in avera ge full - time equ iva l ent em p l oyee s

to su pport incre a s ed flyi n g, i n c re a s ed em p l oyee incen tive s

and high er wage ra tes re su l ting from the Com p a ny ’s dec i-

s i on to increase em p l oyee wages to indu s try standard by

the year 2000.

Ai rc raft fuel ex pense incre a s ed 86.5%, $667 mill i on , i n

2000 as com p a red to the pri or ye a r. The avera ge pri ce per

ga ll on incre a s ed 83.2% from 47.31 cents in 1999 to 86.69

cents in 2000. In ad d i ti on , j et fuel con su m pti on dec re a s ed

0.3% even with incre a s ed flight opera ti ons pri n c i p a lly

ref l ecting the fuel ef f i c i ency of the Com p a ny ’s yo u n ger

f l eet . Du ring 2000 and 1999, the Com p a ny recogn i zed

gains of a pprox i m a tely $44 mill i on and $90 mill i on ,

re s pectively, rel a ted to its fuel hed ging progra m .

Ai rc raft rentals incre a s ed 9.5%, $73 mill i on , du ring 2000

as com p a red to 1999, due to the ad d i ti on of n ewer airc ra f t .

Management�s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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Ma i n ten a n ce , m a terials and rep a i rs incre a s ed 7.1%,

$43 mill i on , in 2000 as com p a red to 1999 due to an

i n c rease in line mainten a n ce and the vo lume and ti m i n g

of en gine overhauls as part of the Com p a ny ’s on goi n g

m a i n ten a n ce progra m .

Landing fees and other rentals incre a s ed 7.0%, $ 3 5

m i ll i on , in 2000 as com p a red to 1999 pri m a ri ly due to

h i gh er fac i l i ties rent and landing fees re su l ting from

i n c re a s ed opera ti on s .

Com m i s s i ons ex pense dec re a s ed 8.7%, $50 mill i on , du ri n g

2000 as com p a red to 1999 due to a lower vo lume of com m i s-

s i on a ble sales and lower ra tes re su l ting from intern a ti on a l

com m i s s i on caps.

Re s erva ti ons and sales ex pense incre a s ed 9.9%, $41 mil-

l i on , in 2000 as com p a red to 1999 pri m a ri ly due to high er

c redit card fees re su l ting from incre a s ed sales.

Deprec i a ti on and amorti z a ti on ex pense incre a s ed 11.7%,

$42 mill i on , in 2000 com p a red to 1999 pri m a ri ly due to the

ad d i ti on of n ew airc raft and rel a ted spare part s .

Pa s s en ger servicing ex pense incre a s ed 4.0%, $14 mill i on ,

in 2000 com p a red to 1999 pri m a ri ly due to an increase in

food costs caused by an increase in passen gers .

Du ring 1999, the Com p a ny made the dec i s i on to accel era te

the reti rem ent of six DC-10-30 airc raft and other items in

1999 and the first half of 2000 and to dispose of rel a ted

excess inven tory. In ad d i ti on , the market va lue of cert a i n

Boeing 747 airc raft no lon ger opera ted by the Com p a ny

h ad decl i n ed . As a re sult of these items and certain other

f l eet - rel a ted item s , the Com p a ny recorded a fleet dispo s i-

ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss of $81 mill i on in 1999.

Ot h er opera ting ex pense incre a s ed 5.2%, $57 mill i on , i n

2000 as com p a red to the pri or ye a r, pri m a ri ly as a re sult of

i n c reases in out s o u rced servi ce s , travel and other inciden t a l

co s t s , and other miscell a n eous ex pen s e .

In terest ex pense incre a s ed 7.7%, $18 mill i on , in 2000 as

com p a red to 1999 due to an increase in lon g - term debt

re su l ting from the purchase of n ew airc ra f t , p a rti a lly of fs et

by interest savi n gs due to the convers i on of the Com p a ny ’s

63⁄4% Converti ble Su bord i n a ted No tes into Class B com-

m on stock , par va lue $.01 per share (“Class B com m on

s tock” ) , in the second qu a rter of 1999 and the rep u rch a s e

of the Com p a ny ’s remaining 91⁄2% sen i or unsec u red note s

in 2000.

In terest income incre a s ed 22.5%, $16 mill i on , in 2000 as

com p a red to 1999 due to high er avera ge balances of c a s h ,

cash equ iva l ents and short - term inve s tm ents and due to

h i gh er interest ra te s .

The Com p a ny ’s other non opera ting income (ex pense) in

2000 inclu ded a $9 mill i on gain rel a ted to the sale of a ri gh t

of f i rst refusal and the Com p a ny ’s remaining inve s tm ent in

Am erica West Ho l d i n gs , p a rti a lly of fs et by forei gn curren-

cy losses of $8 mill i on . Ot h er non opera ting incom e

( ex pense) in 1999 inclu ded a $33 mill i on gain on the sale of

a porti on of the Com p a ny ’s interest in Equant N.V.

( “ Equ a n t” ) , p a rti a lly of fs et by forei gn currency losses of

$13 mill i on , losses on equ i ty inve s tm ents of $7 mill i on and

a $4 mill i on loss on the sale of the Com p a ny ’s warrants to

p u rchase com m on stock of pri cel i n e . com , In c .

In 2000, an ex tra ord i n a ry ch a r ge of $6 mill i on (net of

i n come tax ben efit) was recorded rel a ted to the early ex ti n-

g u i s h m ent of debt .

Co m pa ri son of 1999 to 1998. The Com p a ny recorded

consolidated net income of $455 million and $383 million

for the ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 1999 and 1998, re s pectively.

Net income in 1999 was significantly impacted by several

non-recurring items, including $200 million of after-tax

gains on the sale of the Company’s interest in AMADEUS

and other investments, a $50 million after-tax fleet disposi-

ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss rel a ted to the early reti rem ent of s evera l

DC-10-30s and other items and the cumulative effect of

accounting changes ($33 million,net of taxes) related to the

write-off of pilot training costs and a change in the method

of accounting for the sale of mileage credits to participating
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partners in the Company’s frequent flyer program. Net

income in 1998 was significantly impacted by a $77 million

after-tax fleet disposition/ impairment loss resulting from

the Com p a ny ’s dec i s i on to accel era te the reti rem ent of

certain jet and turboprop aircraft.

Pa s s en ger revenue incre a s ed 8.9%, $660 mill i on , du ri n g

1999 as com p a red to 1998. The increase was due to an

11.3% increase in revenue passen ger miles, p a rti a lly of fs et

by a 2.7% dec rease in yi el d . Both yi eld pre s su res in the

tra n s a t l a n tic markets and a 6.7% increase in avera ge stage

l ength caused the dec rease in yi el d .

Ca r go and mail revenue incre a s ed 10.2%, $28 mill i on , i n

1999 as com p a red to 1998 due to incre a s ed dom e s tic and

i n tern a ti onal vo lumes and new markets ad ded in 1999.

Ot h er opera ting revenue incre a s ed 12.2%, $24 mill i on ,

in 1999 com p a red to the pri or year pri m a ri ly due to an

i n c rease in fees ch a r ged to custom ers to ch a n ge adva n ce

p u rchase ti ckets and also due to an increase in Pre s i den t s

Club revenue as a re sult of a larger nu m ber of these airport

priva te clu b s .

Wa ge s , s a l a ries and rel a ted costs incre a s ed 13.2%, $ 2 9 2

m i ll i on , du ring 1999 as com p a red to 1998, pri m a ri ly due to

an 8.3% increase in avera ge full - time equ iva l ent em p l oyee s

to su pport incre a s ed flying and high er wage ra tes re su l ti n g

f rom the Com p a ny ’s dec i s i on to increase em p l oyee wage s

to indu s try standard by the year 2000.

Ai rc raft fuel ex pense incre a s ed 6.1%, $44 mill i on , i n

1999 as com p a red to the pri or ye a r. The avera ge pri ce per

ga ll on incre a s ed 1.0% from 46.83 cents in 1998 to 47.31

cents in 1999. This increase is net of gains of approximately

$90 mill i on recogn i zed du ring 1999 rel a ted to the

Company’s fuel hedging program. In addition, the quantity

of j et fuel used incre a s ed 3.7% pri n c i p a lly ref l ecti n g

i n c re a s ed capac i ty of fs et in part by the incre a s ed fuel ef f i-

c i ency of the Com p a ny ’s yo u n ger fleet .

Ai rc raft rentals incre a s ed 17.0%, $112 mill i on , du r-

ing 1999 as com p a red to 1998, due to the del ivery of

n ew airc ra f t .

Landing fees and other rentals incre a s ed 20.0%, $83 mil-

l i on , du ring 1999 as com p a red to 1998 pri m a ri ly due to

h i gh er fac i l i ties rent due to incre a s ed ra tes and vo lume and

h i gh er landing fees re su l ting from incre a s ed opera ti on s .

Commissions expense decreased 1.2%,$7 million, during

1999 as com p a red to 1998 due to lower ra tes re su l ting from

i n tern a ti onal com m i s s i on caps and a lower vo lume of

com m i s s i on a ble sales.

Re s erva ti ons and sales ex pense incre a s ed 12.8%, $ 4 7

m i ll i on , in 1999 com p a red to 1998 pri m a ri ly due to an

i n c rease in credit card discount fees and com p uter re s erva-

ti on sys tem fees as a re sult of h i gh er sales.

Deprec i a ti on and amorti z a ti on ex pense incre a s ed 22.4%,

$66 mill i on , in 1999 com p a red to 1998 pri m a ri ly due to the

ad d i ti on of n ew airc raft and rel a ted spare part s .

Passenger servicing expense increased 13.9%,$43 million,

in 1999 com p a red to 1998 pri m a ri ly due to an increase in

food costs caused by an increase in passen gers .

Other operating expense increased 16.1%, $153 million,

in 1999 as com p a red to the pri or ye a r, pri m a ri ly as a re sult of

i n c reases in airc raft servicing ex pense and out s o u rced servi ce s .

In terest ex pense incre a s ed 30.9%, $55 mill i on , in 1999 as

com p a red to 1998 due to an increase in lon g - term debt

re su l ting from the purchase of n ew airc raft and $200 mill i on

of 8% unsec u red sen i or notes issu ed in Decem ber 1998,

p a rti a lly of fs et by interest savi n gs of $9 mill i on due to the

convers i on of the Com p a ny ’s 63⁄4% Converti bl e

Su bord i n a ted No tes into Class B com m on stock .

In terest income incre a s ed 20.3%, $12 mill i on , in 1999 as

com p a red to 1998 due to high er avera ge balances of c a s h ,

cash equ iva l ents and short - term inve s tm ents and due to

h i gh er interest ra te s .
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C E R T A I N S T A T I S T I C A L INFORMATION � An analysis of s t a ti s tical inform a ti on for Con ti n en t a l ’s jet opera ti on s ,

excluding regi onal jets opera ted by Con ti n ental Ex pre s s , In c .( “ Ex pre s s” ) , a wh o lly own ed su b s i d i a ry of the Com p a ny, for each

of the three ye a rs in the peri od en ded Decem ber 31, 2000 is as fo ll ows :

Net Increase/ Net Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)

2000 2000-1999 1999 1999-1998 1998

Revenue passengers (thousands) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46,896 3.0% 45,540 4.4% 43,625

Revenue passenger miles (millions) (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64,161 6.9% 60,022 11.3% 53,910

Available seat miles (millions) (2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86,100 5.1% 81,946 9.7% 74,727

Passenger load factor (3)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 74.5% 1.3 pts. 73.2% 1.1 pts. 72.1%

Breakeven passenger load factor (4)(5) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66.3% 1.6 pts. 64.7% 3.1 pts. 61.6%

Passenger revenue per available seat mile (cents) . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.84 7.9% 9.12 (1.2)% 9.23

Total revenue per available seat mile (cents) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10.67 8.2% 9.86 (0.9)% 9.95

Operating cost per available seat mile (cents) (5) . . . . . . . . . . . . 9.76 8.6% 8.99 1.1% 8.89

Average yield per revenue passenger mile (cents) (6) . . . . . . . . . 13.20 6.0% 12.45 (2.7)% 12.79

Average price per gallon of fuel, excluding fuel taxes (cents) . . . 86.69 83.2% 47.31 1.0 % 46.83

Average price per gallon of fuel, including fuel taxes (cents)  . . . 91.00 76.7% 51.51 0.6% 51.20

Fuel gallons consumed (millions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,537 (0.3)% 1,542 3.7% 1,487

Average fare per revenue passenger  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $180.66 10.1% $164.11 3.9% $158.02

Average length of aircraft flight (miles) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,159 4.0% 1,114 6.7% 1,044

Average daily utilization of each aircraft (hours) (7)  . . . . . . . . . 10:36 1.1% 10:29 2.6% 10:13

Actual aircraft in fleet at end of period (8) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 371 2.2% 363 — 363

Con ti n ental has en tered into bl ock space arra n gem ents with certain other carri ers wh ereby one or both of the carri ers is

obl i ga ted to purchase capac i ty on the other. The table above does not inclu de the stati s tics for the capac i ty that was purch a s ed

by another carri er.

(1) The number of scheduled miles flown by revenue passengers.

(2) The number of seats available for passengers multiplied by the number of scheduled miles those seats are flown.

(3) Revenue passenger miles divided by available seat miles.

(4) The percen t a ge of seats that must be occ u p i ed by revenue passen gers in order for the airline to break even on an income before income taxes basis,

excluding nonrecurring charges,nonoperating items and other special items.

(5) 1999 and 1998 exclude fleet disposition/impairment losses totaling $81 million and $122 million, respectively.

(6) The average revenue received for each mile a revenue passenger is carried.

(7) The average number of hours per day that an aircraft flown in revenue service is operated (from gate departure to gate arrival).

(8) Excludes four all-cargo 727 aircraft at Continental Micronesia, Inc.,a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1999.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES � As of

Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny had $1.4 bi ll i on in cash,

cash equ iva l ents and short - term inve s tm en t s , com p a red to

$1.6 bi ll i on as of Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 . Net cash provi ded by

opera ting activi ties incre a s ed $128 mill i on du ring the ye a r

en ded Decem ber 31, 2000 com p a red to the same peri od in

the pri or year pri m a ri ly due to an increase in opera ti n g

i n com e . Net cash used by inve s ting activi ties for the ye a r

en ded Decem ber 31, 2000 com p a red to the same peri od in

the pri or year dec re a s ed $591 mill i on , pri m a ri ly as a re su l t

of the proceeds from the sale of s h ort - term inve s tm ents in

2 0 0 0 , p a rti a lly of fs et by proceeds received from the sale of

A M A D E U S in 1999. Net cash used by financing activi ti e s

i n c re a s ed $345 mill i on pri m a ri ly due to an increase in pay-

m ents on lon g - term debt and capital lease obl i ga ti on s .

As of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental had approx i m a tely

$3.7 bi ll i on (including current matu ri ties) of l on g - term debt

and capital lease obl i ga ti on s , and had approx i m a tely $1.9

bi ll i on of Con ti n en t a l - obl i ga ted mandatori ly redeem a bl e

preferred sec u ri ties of tru s t , redeem a ble com m on stock

and com m on stock h o l ders’ equ i ty, a ra tio of 2.0 to 1, a t

Decem ber 31, 2000 and 2.1 to 1 at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 .

In Ma rch 2000, the Com p a ny com p l eted an of fering of

$743 mill i on of p a s s - t h ro u gh certi f i c a tes to be used to finance

( t h ro u gh ei t h er levera ged leases or sec u red debt financings )

the debt porti on of the acqu i s i ti on cost of 21 Boeing airc ra f t .

All of these airc raft were placed in servi ce in 2000.

In Novem ber 2000, the Com p a ny com p l eted an of fering of

$176 mill i on of f l oa ting en h a n ced airc raft trust sec u ri ti e s

to be used to finance the debt porti on of the acqu i s i ti on

cost of four Boeing airc ra f t . All of these airc raft were placed

in servi ce by Ja nu a ry 2001.

In Novem ber 2000, the Com p a ny com p l eted an of feri n g

of $841 mill i on of p a s s - t h ro u gh certi f i c a tes to be used to

f i n a n ce (thro u gh ei t h er levera ged leases or sec u red debt

f i n a n c i n gs) the debt porti on of the acqu i s i ti on cost of 2 3

n ew Boeing airc raft sch edu l ed for del ivery from Febru a ry

2001 to Decem ber 2001.

Also in Novem ber 2000, the Com p a ny com p l eted the

p l acem ent of 5,000,000 6% Converti ble Preferred

Sec u ri ti e s , k n own as Term In come Deferra ble Equ i ty

Sec u ri ti e s . The net proceeds of the priva te placem en t

to t a l ed $242 mill i on and were used as part of the purch a s e

pri ce for approx i m a tely 6.7 mill i on shares of Class A com-

m on stock , par va lue $.01 per share (“Class A com m on stock” )

h eld by Nort hwest Ai rlines Corpora ti on ( “ Nort hwe s t” )

and an affiliate .

Also in Novem ber 2000, the Com p a ny com p l eted an

of fering of $177 mill i on special fac i l i ties revenue bon d s

i s su ed by the New Jers ey Econ omic Devel opm en t

Aut h ori ty. The bonds wi ll finance the con s tru cti on of a

m a i n ten a n ce fac i l i ty, c a r go fac i l i ty, ground servi ce equ i p-

m ent mainten a n ce fac i l i ty, terminal improvem en t s , a n d

o t h er va rious proj ects rel a ted to the Com p a ny ’s Glob a l

G a tew ay ex p a n s i on at New a rk .

In Ja nu a ry 2001, the Com p a ny obt a i n ed a 3-year $200

m i ll i on pre - del ivery paym ent fac i l i ty to be used to finance

m a nu f actu rer progress paym ents on 156 new Boeing airc ra f t .

Du ring 2000, the Com p a ny ’s Boa rd of Di rectors

increased the size of its common stock repurchase program

by the amount of cash proceeds received by the Company

for the purchase of common stock by employees and other

participants under the Company’s employee stock purchase

and stock option plans after January 1, 2000. The program

also permits the expenditure of one half of future net

income (excluding special gains and charges), plus all the

proceeds from the sale of non-strategic assets, to repurchase

common stock.Of the approximately $287 million available

in the program as of December 31, 2000, $200 million was

used as a part of the pur chase price for approximately 6.7

million shares of Class A common stock held by Northwest.

A significant amount of Con ti n en t a l ’s assets are

en c u m bered .
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Deferred Tax As set s . As of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny

h ad deferred tax assets aggrega ting $677 mill i on , i n clu d i n g

$366 mill i on rel a ted to net opera ting losses (“NOLs” ) , a n d

a va lu a ti on all ow a n ce of $263 mill i on .

Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (“Section 382”)

imposes limitations on a corporation’s ability to utilize

NOLs if it experiences an “ownership change”. In general

terms, an ownership change may result from transactions

increasing the ownership of certain stockholders in the

stock o f a corporation by more than 50 percentage points

over a three-year period. In the event that an ownership

ch a n ge occ u rred , uti l i z a ti on of Con ti n en t a l ’s NOLs would be

su bj ect to an annual limitati on under Secti on 382 determ i n ed

by multiplying the value of the Company’s stock at the time

of the ownership change by the applicable long-term tax

exempt rate (which was 5.39% for December 2000). Any

unused annual limitation may be carried over to later years,

and the amount of the limitation may under certain cir-

cumstances be increased by the built-in gains in assets held

by the Com p a ny at the time of the ch a n ge that are recogn i zed

in the five-year period after the change. Under current con-

ditions,if an ownership change were to occur, Continental’s

annual NOL utilization would be limited to approximately

$174 million per year other than through the recognition of

future built-in gain transactions.

In November 1998, Northwest completed its acquisition

of certain equity of the Company previously held by Air

Partners, L.P. and its affiliates, together with certain Class A

common stock of the Company held by other investors,

totaling 8,661,224 shares of the Class A common stock. On

January 22,2001, Continental repurchased 6,685,279 shares

of Continental Class A common stock from Northwest and

an affiliate. In addition, each issued share of Continental

Class A common stock was reclassified into 1.32 shares of

Class B common stock in a nontaxable transaction. The

Company does not believe that these transactions resulted

in an ownership change for purposes of Section 382.

Pu rch a se Co m m i tm en t s . Con ti n ental has su b s t a n tial com-

m i tm ents for capital ex pen d i tu re s , i n cluding for the

acqu i s i ti on of n ew airc ra f t . As of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , t h e

e s ti m a ted aggrega te cost of the Com p a ny ’s firm com m i tm en t s

for Boeing airc raft is approx i m a tely $4 bi ll i on . Con ti n en t a l

c u rren t ly plans to finance its new Boeing airc raft with a

com bi n a ti on of en h a n ced pass thro u gh trust certi f i c a te s ,

lease equ i ty and other third - p a rty financing, su bj ect to

ava i l a bi l i ty and market con d i ti on s . As of Decem ber 31,

2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental had approx i m a tely $890 mill i on in

financing arra n ged for su ch Boeing del iveri e s . Con ti n en t a l

also has com m i tm ents or let ters of i n tent for back s top

financing for approx i m a tely 23% of the anti c i p a ted

remaining acqu i s i ti on cost of su ch Boeing del iveri e s . In

ad d i ti on , at Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental had firm com-

m i tm ents to purchase 26 spare en gines rel a ted to the new

Boeing airc raft for approx i m a tely $158 mill i on , wh i ch wi ll

be del ivera ble thro u gh Ma rch 2005. Fu rt h er financing wi ll

be needed to satisfy the Com p a ny ’s capital com m i tm en t s

for other airc raft and airc ra f t - rel a ted ex pen d i tu res su ch as

en gi n e s , s p a re part s , s i mu l a tors and rel a ted item s . Th ere

can be no assu ra n ce that su f f i c i ent financing wi ll be ava i l a bl e

for all airc raft and other capital ex pen d i tu res not covered

by firm financing com m i tm en t s . Del iveries of n ew Boei n g

a i rc raft are ex pected to increase airc raft ren t a l , deprec i a ti on

and interest costs while gen era ting cost savi n gs in the are a s

of m a i n ten a n ce , f u el and pilot tra i n i n g.

As of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the esti m a ted aggrega te co s t

of Ex pre s s’s firm com m i tm ents for Embraer regi onal jet s

is approx i m a tely $3 bi ll i on . Nei t h er Ex press nor

Con ti n ental wi ll have any obl i ga ti on to take any su ch firm

E m braer airc raft that are not financed by a third party

and leased to Con ti n en t a l .

Continental expects its cash outlays for 2001 capital

ex pen d i tu re s , exclu s ive of f l eet plan requ i rem en t s , to aggrega te

approximately $326 million, primarily relating to software

application and automation infrastructure projects, aircraft

m od i f i c a ti ons and mandatory mainten a n ce proj ect s ,p a s s en-

ger terminal facility improvements and office,maintenance,
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telecommunications and ground equipment. Continental’s

net capital expenditures during 2000 aggregated $203 mil-

lion, exclusive of fleet plan requirements.

The Com p a ny ex pects to fund its futu re capital com m i t-

m ents thro u gh intern a lly gen era ted funds toget h er wi t h

gen eral Com p a ny financings and airc raft financing tra n s-

acti on s . However, t h ere can be no assu ra n ce that su f f i c i en t

financing wi ll be ava i l a ble for all airc raft and other capital

ex pen d i tu res not covered by firm financing com m i tm en t s .

Bond Financings. Continental has entered into agreements

with the City of Houston, Texas, the City of Cleveland,

O h i o, the New Jers ey Econ omic Devel opm ent Aut h ori ty,

the Department of Transportation o f the State of Hawaii,

the Regional Airports Improvement Corporation, and the

Ha rris Co u n ty (Ho u s ton) In du s trial Devel opm en t

Corporation to provide funds for constructing, improving

and modifying facilities and acquiring equipment which

have been or will be leased to Continental. In connection

therewith, Continental has unconditionally guaranteed the

principal and interest on certain bonds totaling approxi-

mately $1.6 billion and has entered into long-term leases

with the respective authorities under which rental payments

will be sufficient to service the related bonds. The leases

generally have terms ranging from 20 to 30 years.

Employees. In July 2000, the Company completed a three-

year program bringing all employees to industry standard

wages and also announced and began to implement a

phased plan to bring employee benefits to industry standard

levels by 2003. The plan provides for increases in vacation,

paid holidays, increased 401(k) Company matching contri-

butions and additional past service retirement credit for

most senior employees.

The fo ll owing is a table of the Com p a ny ’s , Ex pre s s’s and

C M I ’s principal co ll ective bargaining agreem en t s , and thei r

re s pective amen d a ble date s :

Approx i m a te 
Nu m ber of
Fu ll - ti m e Con tract

E m p l oyee Equ iva l en t Repre s en ti n g Am en d a bl e
Gro u p E m p l oyee s Un i on D a te

Con ti n ental Pilots 5 , 0 0 0 In depen dent O ctober 2002
As s oc i a ti on of
Con ti n ental Pilots 
( “ I AC P ” )

Ex press Pilots 1 , 5 0 0 I AC P O ctober 2002

Di s p a tch ers 1 5 0 Tra n s port Workers O ctober 2003
Un i on of Am eri c a

Con ti n ental 3 , 5 0 0 In tern a ti onal Ja nu a ry 2002
Mech a n i c s Bro t h erh ood of

Te a m s ters 
( “Te a m s ters” )

Ex press Mech a n i c s 4 0 0 Te a m s ters Ja nu a ry 2003

CMI Mech a n i c s 1 0 0 Te a m s ters Ma rch 2001

Con ti n ental Fligh t 8 , 1 0 0 In tern a ti on a l Septem ber 2004
At ten d a n t s As s oc i a ti on of

Machinists and 
Aero s p ace Workers 
( “ I A M ” )

Ex press Flight 5 5 0 I A M Decem ber 2004
At ten d a n t s

CMI Flight 3 5 0 I A M ( Nego ti a ti ons for 
At ten d a n t s a m en ded con tract 

on goi n g )

CMI Fleet and 4 5 0 Te a m s ters Ma rch 2001
Pa s s en ger Servi ce
E m p l oyee s
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In Ma rch 2000, CMI and the IAM began co ll ective bar-

gaining nego ti a ti ons to amend the CMI flight atten d a n t s’

con tract (wh i ch became amen d a ble in June 2000). The parti e s

re ach ed a ten t a tive agreem en t , wh i ch was not ra ti f i ed by

the flight atten d a n t s . Nego ti a ti ons wi ll re sume in early

2 0 0 1 . The Com p a ny con ti nues to bel i eve that mutu a lly

acceptable agreements can be reached with such employees,

a l t h o u gh the ulti m a te outcome of the nego ti a ti ons is

u n k n own at this ti m e .

The pilots are in the process of con s i dering wh et h er they

wish to mer ge their indepen dent union , I AC P, i n to the Ai r

Line Pilots As s oc i a ti on , wh i ch would be su bj ect to ra ti f i c a-

ti on by the Con ti n ental pilots.

The other em p l oyees of Con ti n en t a l , Ex press and CMI

a re not covered by co ll ective bargaining agreem en t s .

Ma n a gem ent bel i eves that the Com p a ny ’s costs are likely

to be affected in the futu re by (i) high er airc raft own ers h i p

costs as new airc raft are del ivered , (ii) high er wage s ,

s a l a ri e s , ben efits and rel a ted costs as the Com p a ny com-

pen s a tes its em p l oyees com p a ra ble to indu s try avera ge ,( i i i )

ch a n ges in the costs of m a terials and servi ces (in parti c u l a r,

the cost of f u el , wh i ch can flu ctu a te sign i f i c a n t ly in

re s ponse to gl obal market con d i ti on s ) , ( iv) ch a n ges in dis-

tri buti on costs and stru ctu re , (v) ch a n ges in govern m en t a l

reg u l a ti ons and taxes affecting air tra n s port a ti on and the

costs ch a r ged for airport acce s s , i n cluding new sec u ri ty

requ i rem en t s , ( vi) ch a n ges in the Com p a ny ’s fleet and

rel a ted capac i ty and (vii) the Com p a ny ’s con ti nuing ef fort s

to redu ce costs thro u gh o ut its opera ti on s , i n clu d i n g

redu ced mainten a n ce costs for new airc ra f t , redu ced distri-

buti on ex pense from using Con ti n en t a l ’s el ectronic ti cket

produ ct , E - Ti cket and the intern et for boo k i n gs , a n d

redu ced interest ex pen s e .
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MARKET RISK SENSITIVE INSTRUMENTS AND

POSITIONS � The Company is subject to certain market

risks, including commodity price risk (i.e., aircraft fuel

prices), interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and price

changes related to investments in equity and debt securities.

The adverse effects of potential changes in these market

risks are discussed below. The sensitivity analyses presented

do not consider the effects that such adverse changes may

have on overall economic activity nor do they consider

additional actions management may take to mitigate the

Company’s exposure to such changes. Actual results may

differ. See the notes to the consolidated financial statements

for a description of the Company’s accounting policies and

other information related to these financial instruments.

Ai rcraft Fu el . The Com p a ny ’s re sults of opera ti ons are

s i gn i f i c a n t ly impacted by ch a n ges in the pri ce of a i rc ra f t

f u el . Du ring 2000 and 1999, a i rc raft fuel acco u n ted for

15.6% and 9.7%, re s pectively, of the Com p a ny ’s opera ti n g

ex penses (excluding fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent losses).

In order to provi de short - term pro tecti on (gen era lly three

to six months) against a sharp increase in jet fuel pri ce s ,t h e

Com p a ny from time to time en ters into petro l eum call

opti on s , petro l eum swap con tracts and jet fuel purch a s e

com m i tm en t s . The Com p a ny ’s fuel hed ging stra tegy co u l d

re sult in the Com p a ny not fully ben ef i ting from certain fuel

pri ce decl i n e s . As of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny had

h ed ged approx i m a tely 23% of its proj ected 2001 fuel

requ i rem ents using petro l eum call opti on s , wh i ch repre s en t s

95% of proj ected first qu a rter fuel requ i rem en t s , com p a red

to approx i m a tely 24% of its proj ected 2000 fuel requ i re-

m ents hed ged at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 . Su b s equ ent to

Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny en tered into jet fuel and

h e a ting oil call opti on s , j et fuel swap con tracts and jet fuel

p u rchase com m i tm en t s . The Com p a ny esti m a tes that a

10% increase in the pri ce per ga ll on of a i rc raft fuel wo u l d

not have a material impact on the fair va lue of the petro l eu m

c a ll opti ons ex i s ting at Decem ber 31, 2000 or 1999.

Fo rei gn Cu rren c y. The Com p a ny is ex po s ed to the ef fect of

exch a n ge ra te flu ctu a ti ons on the U. S . do llar va lue of forei gn

c u rrency den om i n a ted opera ting revenue and ex pen s e s .

The Com p a ny ’s largest ex po su re comes from the Ja p a n e s e

yen . However, the Com p a ny attem pts to miti ga te the ef fect

of certain po ten tial forei gn currency losses by en teri n g

i n to forw a rd con tracts that ef fectively en a ble it to sell

Japanese yen ex pected to be received from yen - den om i-

n a ted net cash flows over the next 12 months at spec i f i ed

exch a n ge ra te s . As of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny

h ad en tered into forw a rd con tracts to hed ge approx i m a tely

75% of its 2001 proj ected yen - den om i n a ted net cash

f l ows , as com p a red to having in place forw a rd con tract s

to hed ge approx i m a tely 95% of its 2000 proj ected yen -

den om i n a ted net cash flows at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 . Th e

Com p a ny esti m a tes that at Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , a 10%

s tren g t h ening in the va lue of the U. S . do llar rel a tive to the yen

would have incre a s ed the fair va lue of the ex i s ting forw a rd

con tracts by $15 mill i on as com p a red to an $18 mill i on

i n c rease in the fair va lue of ex i s ting forw a rd con tracts at

Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 .

In terest Ra te s . The Com p a ny ’s re sults of opera ti ons are

a f fected by flu ctu a ti ons in interest ra tes (e.g. , i n tere s t

ex pense on debt and interest income earn ed on short -

term inve s tm en t s ) .

The Com p a ny had approx i m a tely $754 mill i on and $690

m i ll i on of va ri a bl e - ra te debt as of Decem ber 31, 2000 and

1 9 9 9 , re s pectively. The Com p a ny has miti ga ted its ex po su re

on certain va ri a bl e - ra te debt by en tering into interest ra te

cap and swap agreem en t s . The interest ra te cap had noti on a l

amounts of $84 mill i on and $106 mill i on as of Decem ber

3 1 , 2000 and 1999, re s pectively. Caps outstanding at

Decem ber 31, 2000 are ef fective thro u gh Ju ly 31, 2 0 0 1 . Th e

i n terest ra te cap limits the amount of po ten tial increase in

the LIBOR ra te com pon ent of the floa ting ra te to a maxi-

mum of 9% over the term of the con tract . The interest ra te

swap outstanding at Decem ber 31, 2000 had a noti on a l

amount of $176 mill i on . The interest ra te swap ef fectively

Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk
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l ocks the Com p a ny into paying a fixed ra te of i n terest on a

porti on of its floa ting ra te debt sec u ri ties thro u gh 2005. If

avera ge interest ra tes incre a s ed by 100 basis points du ri n g

2001 as com p a red to 2000, the Com p a ny ’s proj ected 2001

i n terest ex pense would increase by approx i m a tely $7 mill i on .

At Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 , an interest ra te increase of 100 basis

points du ring 2000 as com p a red to 1999 was proj ected to

i n c rease 2000 interest ex pense by approx i m a tely $6 mill i on .

The interest ra te cap does not miti ga te this increase in

i n terest ex pense materi a lly given the current level of su ch

f l oa ting ra te s .

As of Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, the fair va lue of $ 2 . 2

bi ll i on and $2.2 bi ll i on (carrying va lue) of the Com p a ny ’s

f i xed - ra te debt was esti m a ted to be $2.2 bi ll i on and $2.2

bi ll i on , re s pectively, b a s ed upon disco u n ted futu re cash

f l ows using current increm ental borrowing ra tes for similar

types of i n s tru m ents or market pri ce s . Ma rket ri s k , e s ti-

m a ted as the po ten tial increase in fair va lue re su l ting from

a hypo t h etical 100 basis points dec rease in interest ra te s ,

was approx i m a tely $136 mill i on and $91 mill i on as of

Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, re s pectively. The fair va lue of

the remaining fixed - ra te debt at Decem ber 31, 2000 and

1 9 9 9 , ( with a carrying va lue of $453 mill i on and $248 mil-

l i on , re s pectively ) , was not practi c a ble to esti m a te .

If 2001 average short-term interest rates decreased by 100

basis points over 2000 avera ge ra te s , the Com p a ny ’s proj ected

interest income from cash, cash equivalents and short-term

i nve s tm ents would dec rease by approx i m a tely $12 mill i on

du ring 2001, com p a red to an esti m a ted $11 mill i on

decrease during 2000 measured at December 31, 1999.

Investments in Equity Securities. The Com p a ny has a 49%

equ i ty inve s tm ent in Compania Pa n a m ena de Avi ac i on ,

S . A . ( “Cop a”) and a 28% equ i ty inve s tm ent in Gu l fs tre a m

In tern a ti onal Ai rl i n e s , In c . ( “Gu l fs tre a m”) wh i ch are also

su bj ect to pri ce ri s k . However, s i n ce a re ad i ly determ i n a bl e

m a rket va lue does not exist for ei t h er Copa or Gu l fs tre a m

( e ach is priva tely hel d ) , the Com p a ny is unable to qu a n ti f y

the amount of pri ce risk sen s i tivi ty inherent in these inve s t-

m en t s . At Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, the carrying va lu e

of the inve s tm ent in Copa was $48 mill i on and $49 mill i on ,

re s pectively. At Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, the carryi n g

va lue of the inve s tm ent in Gu l fs tream was $8 mill i on and

$10 mill i on , re s pectively.

At Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny own ed approx i-

m a tely 357,000 depo s i tory certi f i c a tes converti bl e , su bj ect

to certain re s tri cti on s , i n to an equ iva l ent nu m ber of s h a re s

of the common stock of Equant, which completed an initial

p u blic of fering in Ju ly 1998. As of Decem ber 31, 2000 and

1999,the estimated fair value of these depository certificates

was approximately $9 million and $40 million, respectively,

b a s ed upon the publ i cly traded market va lue of Equ a n t

com m on stock . Si n ce the fair va lue of the Com p a ny ’s

i nve s tm ent in the depo s i tory certi f i c a tes is not re ad i ly

determinable (i.e.,the depository certificates are not traded

on a sec u ri ties exch a n ge ) , the inve s tm ent is carri ed at co s t ,

wh i ch was not material as of Decem ber 31, 2000 or 1999.
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Year Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Opera ting Revenu e :
Pa s s en ger  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9 , 3 0 8 $ 8 , 1 1 6 $ 7 , 4 5 6
Ca r go and mail . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 6 0 3 0 3 2 7 5
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 3 1 2 2 0 1 9 6

9 , 8 9 9 8 , 6 3 9 7 , 9 2 7

Opera ting Ex pen s e s :
Wa ge s ,s a l a ries and rel a ted co s t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 , 8 4 5 2 , 5 1 0 2 , 2 1 8
Ai rc raft fuel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 4 3 8 7 7 1 7 2 7
Ai rc raft ren t a l s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 4 4 7 7 1 6 5 9
Ma i n ten a n ce ,m a terials and rep a i rs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 4 6 6 0 3 5 8 2
Landing fees and other ren t a l s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 3 2 4 9 7 4 1 4
Com m i s s i on s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 2 6 5 7 6 5 8 3
Re s erva ti ons and sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 5 5 4 1 4 3 6 7
Deprec i a ti on and amorti z a ti on  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 0 2 3 6 0 2 9 4
Pa s s en ger servi c i n g  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 6 6 3 5 2 3 0 9
F l eet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 8 1 1 2 2
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 1 6 1 1 , 1 0 4 9 5 1

9 , 2 1 5 8 , 0 3 9 7 , 2 2 6

Opera ting In com e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 8 4 6 0 0 7 0 1

Non opera ting In come (Ex pen s e ) :
In terest ex pen s e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 2 5 1 ) ( 2 3 3 ) ( 1 7 8 )
In terest incom e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 7 7 1 5 9
In terest capitalized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 7 5 5 5 5
Gain on sale of A M A D E U S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2 9 7 —
Ot h er, n et  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 6 ) 8 1 1

( 1 1 3 ) 1 9 8 ( 5 3 )

In come before In come Ta xe s , Cu mu l a tive Effect of
Acco u n ting Ch a n ges and Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 7 1 7 9 8 6 4 8

In come Tax Provi s i on  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 2 2 2 ) ( 3 1 0 ) ( 2 4 8 )

Di s tri buti ons on Preferred Sec u ri ties of Tru s t ,n et of a pp l i c a ble 
i n come taxes of $1 and $7 in 2000 and 1998, re s pectively . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 1 ) — ( 1 3 )

In come before Cu mu l a tive Effect of Acco u n ting Ch a n ges and Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge  . . . . . . . . . 3 4 8 4 8 8 3 8 7
Cu mu l a tive Effect of Acco u n ting Ch a n ge s , Net of App l i c a ble In come Ta xes of $19 (1)  . . . . . . . . — ( 3 3 ) —
Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge ,n et of a pp l i c a ble income Ta xes of $3 and $2 in 2000 and 1998  . . . . . . . . . ( 6 ) — ( 4 )

Net In com e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3 4 2 $ 4 5 5 $ 3 8 3

E a rn i n gs per Com m on Share :
In come before Cu mu l a tive Effect of Acco u n ting Ch a n ges and Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge . . . . . . $ 5 . 7 1 $ 7 . 0 2 $ 6 . 4 0
Cu mu l a tive Effect of Acco u n ting Ch a n ge s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — ( 0 . 4 8 ) —
Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 0 . 0 9 ) — ( 0 . 0 6 )

Net In com e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5 . 6 2 $ 6 . 5 4 $ 6.34 

E a rn i n gs per Com m on Share As suming Di luti on :
In come before Cu mu l a tive Effect of Acco u n ting Ch a n ges and Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge . . . . . . $ 5 . 5 4 $ 6 . 6 4 $ 5 . 0 6
Cu mu l a tive Effect of Acco u n ting Ch a n ge s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — ( 0 . 4 4 ) —
Ex tra ord i n a ry Ch a r ge . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 0 . 0 9 ) — ( 0 . 0 4 )

Net In com e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5 . 4 5 $ 6 . 2 0 $ 5 . 0 2

(1) See Note 1(i) for the proforma effect of retroactive application of the accounting change.

The accom p a nying No tes to Con s o l i d a ted Financial Statem ents are an integral part of these statem en t s .

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In millions, except per share data)
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December 31, December 31,

ASSETS 2000 1999

Cu rrent As s et s :
Cash and cash equ iva l en t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1 , 3 7 1 $ 1 , 1 9 8
S h ort - term inve s tm en t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4 3 9 2
Accounts receiva bl e ,n et of a ll ow a n ce for do u btful receiva bles of $20 and $20, re s pectively  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 9 5 5 0 6
S p a re parts and su pp l i e s ,n et of a ll ow a n ce for ob s o l e s cen ce of $67 and $59, re s pectively  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 8 0 2 3 6
Deferred income taxe s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 3 7 1 4 5
Prep aym ents and other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 5 2 1 2 9

Total current asset s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 , 4 5 9 2 , 6 0 6

Property and Equ i pm en t :
Own ed property and equ i pm en t :

F l i ght equ i pm en t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 , 5 9 7 3 , 5 9 3
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9 0 8 1 4

5 , 5 8 7 4 , 4 0 7
Le s s : Acc u mu l a ted deprec i a ti on  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 0 2 5 8 0 8

4 , 5 6 2 3 , 5 9 9

Pu rchase deposits for flight equ i pm en t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 0 4 3 6 6

Capital leases:
F l i ght equ i pm en t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2 6 3 0 0
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 3 8 8 8

3 6 4 3 8 8
Le s s : Acc u mu l a ted amorti z a ti on . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 6 7 1 8 0

1 9 7 2 0 8

Total property and equ i pm en t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 , 1 6 3 4 , 1 7 3

Ot h er As s et s :
Ro ute s , ga tes and slots, n et of acc u mu l a ted amorti z a ti on of $395 and $345, re s pectively  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 0 8 1 1 , 1 3 1
Ot h er asset s ,n et  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 9 8 3 1 3

Total other asset s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 5 7 9 1 , 4 4 4

Total As s et s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9 , 2 0 1 $ 8 , 2 2 3

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In millions, except for share data)
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December 31, December 31,

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY 2000 1999

Cu rrent Liabi l i ti e s :
Cu rrent matu ri ties of l on g - term debt and capital leases  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3 0 4 $ 3 2 1
Accounts paya bl e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 0 1 6 8 5 6
Air traffic liabi l i ty  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 1 2 5 1 , 0 4 2
Acc ru ed payro ll and pen s i on s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 9 7 2 9 9
Acc ru ed other liabi l i ti e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 3 8 2 5 7

Total current liabi l i ti e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 , 9 8 0 2 , 7 7 5

Lon g - Term Debt and Capital Le a s e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 , 3 7 4 3 , 0 5 5

Deferred Credits and Ot h er Lon g - Term Liabi l i ti e s :
Deferred income taxe s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 8 7 5 9 0
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 0 8 2 1 0

Total deferred credits and other lon g - term liabi l i ti e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9 5 8 0 0

Com m i tm ents and Con ti n gen c i e s

Con ti n en t a l - Obl i ga ted Ma n d a tori ly Redeem a ble Preferred Sec u ri ties of
Su b s i d i a ry Trust Holding So l ely Converti ble Su bord i n a ted Deben tu res (1) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4 2 —

Redeem a ble Com m on Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 5 0 —

Com m on Stock h o l ders’ Equ i ty:
Class A com m on stock — $.01 par, 50,000,000 shares aut h ori zed ; 10,963,538 and 11,320,849 share s

i s su ed and outstanding in 2000 and 1999, re s pectively  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — —
Class B com m on stock — $.01 par, 200,000,000 shares aut h ori zed ; 64,073,431 and 63,923,431 shares 

i s su ed in 2000 and 1999, re s pectively  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Ad d i ti onal paid-in capital  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 7 9 8 7 1
Ret a i n ed earn i n gs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 4 5 6 1 , 1 1 4
Acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive income (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 3 ( 1 )
Tre a su ry stock — 16,586,603 and 9,763,684 Class B shares in 2000 and 1999, re s pectively, at co s t  . . . . . . . . . . ( 6 8 9 ) ( 3 9 2 )

Total com m on stock h o l ders’ equ i ty  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 1 6 0 1 , 5 9 3

Total Liabi l i ties and Stock h o l ders’ Equ i ty  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 9 , 2 0 1 $ 8 , 2 2 3

(1) The sole assets of the Trust are convertible subordinated debentures with an aggregate principal amount of $250 million, which bear interest at the rate of

6% per annum and mature on November 15,2030. Upon repayment,the Continental-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities of Subsidiary

Trust will be mandatorily redeemed.

The accom p a nying No tes to Con s o l i d a ted Financial Statem ents are an integral part of these statem en t s .
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Year Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Cash Flows from Opera ting Activi ti e s :
Net incom e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3 4 2 $ 4 5 5 $ 3 8 3
Ad ju s tm ents to reconcile net income to net cash provi ded by opera ting activi ti e s :

Deferred income taxe s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2 4 2 9 3 2 2 4
Deprec i a ti on and amorti z a ti on  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 0 2 3 6 0 2 9 4
F l eet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 8 1 1 2 2
Gain on sale of A M A D E U S  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — ( 2 9 7 ) —
Gain on sale of o t h er inve s tm en t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 9 ) ( 2 9 ) ( 6 )
Cu mu l a tive ef fect of acco u n ting ch a n ge s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 3 3 —
Ot h er, n et  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 4 9 ) ( 8 3 ) ( 4 )
Ch a n ges in opera ting assets and liabi l i ti e s :

( In c rease) dec rease in accounts receiva bl e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 ( 5 3 ) ( 1 0 2 )
In c rease in spare parts and su pp l i e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 7 2 ) ( 9 9 ) ( 7 1 )
In c rease in accounts paya bl e  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 5 9 8 5 9
In c rease in air traffic liabi l i ty . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 6 3 1 1 0 1 0 8
In c rease (dec rease) in acc ru ed payro ll and pen s i on s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 1 3 2 ) 3 4 1 0 7
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 1 3 0 ) ( 3 7 ) ( 2 3 8 )

Net cash provi ded by opera ting activi ti e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 0 4 7 7 6 8 7 6

Cash Flows from Inve s ting Activi ti e s :
Pu rchase deposits paid in con n ecti on with futu re airc raft del iveri e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 6 4 0 ) ( 1 , 1 7 4 ) ( 8 1 8 )
Pu rchase deposits ref u n ded in con n ecti on with airc raft del ivered  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 7 7 1 , 1 3 9 7 5 8
Capital ex pen d i tu re s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 5 1 1 ) ( 7 0 6 ) ( 6 1 0 )
Sale (purchase) of s h ort - term inve s tm en t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 6 8 ( 3 9 2 ) —
Proceeds from sale of A M A D E U S ,n et  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 3 9 1 —
Proceeds from dispo s i ti on of property and equ i pm en t . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 3 5 7 7 4 6
Proceeds from sale of o t h er inve s tm en t s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1 3 5 9
Inve s tm ent in and adva n ces to partn er airl i n e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — ( 2 3 ) ( 5 3 )
Ot h er  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 8 ) ( 6 ) ( 3 0 )

Net cash used in inve s ting activi ti e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 6 8 ) ( 6 5 9 ) ( 6 9 8 )

Cash Flows from Financing Activi ti e s :
Proceeds from issu a n ce of l on g - term debt ,n et  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 5 7 4 5 3 7 3 7
Proceeds from issu a n ce of preferred sec u ri ties of tru s t ,n et  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4 2 — —
Pu rchase of Class B com m on stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 4 5 0 ) ( 5 2 8 ) ( 2 2 3 )
Paym ents on lon g - term debt and capital lease obl i ga ti on s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 7 0 7 ) ( 2 9 5 ) ( 4 2 3 )
Proceeds from issu a n ce of com m on stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 2 3 8 5 6
Proceeds from sale-leaseb ack tra n s acti on s . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 1 4 7 1
Divi dends paid on preferred sec u ri ties of tru s t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — ( 2 2 )

Net cash (used in) provi ded by financing activi ti e s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 6 6 3 ) ( 3 1 8 ) 1 9 6

Net In c rease (Dec rease) in Cash and Cash Equ iva l en t s  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 7 3 ( 2 0 1 ) 3 7 4

Cash and Cash Equ iva l ents — Beginning of Peri od  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 , 1 9 8 1 , 3 9 9 1 , 0 2 5

Cash and Cash Equ iva l ents — End of Peri od . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1 , 3 7 1 $ 1 , 1 9 8 $ 1 , 3 9 9

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In millions)
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Year Ended December 31,

2000 1999 1998

Su pp l em ent Cash Flows In form a ti on :
In terest paid  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2 7 6 $ 2 2 1 $ 1 5 7
In come taxes paid  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 7 $ 1 8 $ 2 5

Inve s ting and Financing Activi ties No t
Af fecting Ca s h :

Property and equ i pm ent acqu i red thro u gh the issu a n ce of debt  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 8 0 8 $ 7 7 4 $ 4 2 5
Convers i on of 63⁄4% Converti ble Su bord i n a ted No tes into Class B com m on stock  . . . . . $ — $ 2 3 0 $ —
Convers i on of Trust Ori gi n a ted Preferred Sec u ri ties into Class B com m on stock  . . . . . . $ — $ 1 1 1 $ 134 
Capital lease obl i ga ti ons incurred  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 5 3 $ 5 0 $ 1 2 4
Sa l e - l e a s eb ack of Beech 1900-D airc ra f t  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ 8 1 $ —

The accom p a nying No tes to Con s o l i d a ted Financial Statem ents are an integral part of these statem en t s .
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Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders� Equity
(In millions)

Accumulated

Additional Other Treasury

Paid-In Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive Stock,

Capital Earnings Income/(Loss) Income At Cost

Balance, December 31, 1997  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 641 $ 276 $ (2) $ 381 $ —

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 383 — 383 —
Additional Minimum Pension Liability,

net of applicable income taxes of $41  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — (76) (76) —
Purchase of Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — (223)
Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Stock Plans . . . . . . . . — — — — 50
Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to Stock Plans . . . . . . . . . 19 — — — —
Conversion of Trust Originated Preferred Securities

into Common Stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (32) — — — 160
Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 — (10) (10) —

Balance, December 31,1998  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 634 659 (88) 297 (13)

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 455 — 455 —
Reduction in Additional Minimum Pension Liability,

net of applicable income taxes of $43  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 82 82 —
Purchase of Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — — — (528)
Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Stock Plans . . . . . . . . (18) — — — 69
Conversion of 63⁄4% Convertible Subordinated

Notes into Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 161 — — — 66
Conversion of Trust Originated Preferred Securities

into Common Stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100 — — — 11
Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) — 5 5 3

Balance, December 31,1999  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 871 1,114 (1) 542 (392)

Net Income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 342 — 342 —
Purchase of Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1) — — — (449)
Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Stock Plans . . . . . . . . (45) — — — 137
Reclass for Redeemable Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (450) — — — —
Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 — 14 14 15

Balance, December 31, 2000  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 379 $ 1,456 $ 13 $ 356 $ (689)
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Consolidated Statements of Common Stockholders� Equity
Number of Shares (in thousands)

Class A Class B
Common Common Treasury

Stock Stock Stock

Balance, December 31,1997 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,379 50,512 —

Purchase of Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (4,453) 4,453

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Stock Plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 859 (859)

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Conversion of

Trust Originated Preferred Securities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 3,182 (3,182)

Conversion of Class A to Class B Common Stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12) 12 (12)

Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to Stock Plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 235 —

Conversion of Trust Originated Preferred Securities into Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 2,377 —

Exercise of warrants  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,040 247 —

Balance, December 31, 1998 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,407 52,971 400

Purchase of Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (13,134) 13,134

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Stock Plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,854 (1,854)

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Conversion

of Class A to Class B Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (86) 86 (86)

Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to Stock Plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 13 —

Conversion of 63⁄4% Convertible Subordinated Notes into Common Stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 6,132 —

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Conversion

of 63⁄4% Convertible Subordinated Notes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1,485 (1,485)

Conversion of Trust Originated Preferred Securities into Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 4,408 —

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Conversion

of Trust Originated Preferred Securities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 345 (345)

Balance, December 31, 1999  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,321 54,160 9,764

Purchase of Common Stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (10,545) 10,545

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Stock Plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 3,365 (3,365)

Reissuance of Treasury Stock pursuant to Conversion

of Class A to Class B Common Stock  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (357) 357 (357)

Issuance of Common Stock pursuant to Stock Plans  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 150 —

Balance, December 31,2000  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10,964 47,487 16,587

The accom p a nying No tes to Con s o l i d a ted Financial Statem ents are an integral part of these statem en t s .
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Con ti n ental Ai rl i n e s , In c . (the “Com p a ny ” or “Con ti n en t a l ” )

is a major United States air carrier engaged in the business

of transporting passengers, cargo and mail. Continental is

the fifth largest United States airline (as measured by 2000

revenue passenger miles) and, together with its wholly

owned subsidiaries, Continental Express, Inc. (“Express”),

and Continental Micronesia, Inc. (“CMI”), each a Delaware

corporation, served 230 airports worldwide at January 16,

2001. As of December 31, 2000, Continental flies to 136

dom e s tic and 94 intern a ti onal de s ti n a ti ons and of fers

ad d i ti onal con n ecting servi ce thro u gh all i a n ces wi t h

domestic and foreign carriers. Continental directly served

16 European cities, seven South American cities, Tel Aviv

and To kyo and is one of the leading airlines providing servi ce

to Mexico and Central America, serving more destinations

there than any other United States airline. Through its

Guam hub, CMI provides extensive service in the western

Pacific, including service to more Japanese cities than any

other United States carrier.

As used in these No tes to Con s o l i d a ted Financial

S t a tem en t s , the terms “Con ti n en t a l ” and “Com p a ny ” refer to

Continental Airlines, Inc. and, unless the context indicates

otherwise, its subsidiaries.

NOTE 1 � SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Principles of Consolidation — The con s o l i d a ted financial

s t a tem ents of the Com p a ny inclu de the accounts of

Con ti n ental and its opera ting su b s i d i a ri e s , Express and

CMI. All significant intercompany transactions h ave been

el i m i n a ted in con s o l i d a ti on .

(b) Use of Estimates — The prep a ra ti on of financial s t a te-

m ents in con form i ty with gen era lly accepted acco u n ti n g

principles requ i res managem ent to make esti m a tes and

a s su m pti ons that affect the amounts reported in the financial

s t a tem ents and accom p a nying note s . Actual re sults co u l d

d i f fer from those esti m a te s .

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents

consist of cash and short-term, highly liquid investments,

which are readily convertible into cash and have a maturity

of three months or less when purchased.

(d) Short-Term Investments — The Com p a ny invests in

com m ercial paper with ori ginal matu ri ties in excess of 9 0

d ays but less than 270 days . These inve s tm ents a re cl a s s i f i ed

as short - term inve s tm ents in the accom p a nying con s o l i d a ted

b a l a n ce sheet . S h ort - term inve s tm ents are stated at co s t ,

wh i ch approx i m a tes market va lu e , and are cl a s s i f i ed as

h el d - to - m a tu ri ty sec u ri ti e s .

(e) Spare Parts and Supplies — Inventories, expendable parts

and su pplies rel a ting to flight equ i pm ent are carri ed at avera ge

acqu i s i ti on cost and are ex pen s ed wh en incurred in opera ti on s .

An all ow a n ce for ob s o l e s cen ce is provi ded over the rem a i n i n g

estimated useful life of the related aircraft, for spare parts

expected to be on hand the date the aircraft are reti red from

s ervi ce ,p lus all ow a n ces for spare parts curren t ly identified as

exce s s . These all ow a n ces are based on managem ent esti m a te s ,

which are subject to change.

(f) Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are

recorded at cost and are depreciated to estimated residual

va lues over their esti m a ted useful lives using the stra i gh t - l i n e

method. The estimated useful lives and residual values for

the Company’s property and equipment are as follows:

Estimated Estimated
Useful Life Residual Value

Jet aircraft  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25 to 30 years 10-15%

Turboprop aircraft . . . . . . . . . . . 18 years 10%

Ground property and 

equipment  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 to 30 years 0%

Capital lease — 

flight and ground . . . . . . . . . . Lease Term 0%

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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(g) Routes, Gates and Slots — Ro utes are a m orti zed on a

s tra i ght-line basis over 40 ye a rs , ga tes over the stated term of

the rel a ted lease and slots over 20 ye a rs . Ro ute s , ga tes and

slots are com pri s ed of the fo ll owing in mill i on s :

Accumulated
Balance at Amortization

December 31,2000 at December 31,2000

Routes  . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 711 $ 179

Gates  . . . . . . . . . . . . . 285 162

Slots . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85 54

$ 1,081 $ 395

(h) Air Traffic Liability — Pa s s en ger revenu e is recognized

when transportation is provided rather than when a ticket is

sold. The amount of passenger ticket sales not yet recogn i zed

as revenue is ref l ected in the accom p a nying Consolidated

Balance Sheets as air traffic liability. The Company performs

periodic evaluations of this estimated liability, and any

adjustments resulting therefrom, which can be significant,

are included in results of operations for the periods in

which the evaluations are completed.

(i) Fre q u ent Flyer Pro gram — Con ti n ental spon s ors a frequ en t

flyer program, “OnePass”, and records an estimated liability

for the increm ental cost assoc i a ted with providing the

rel a ted free tra n s port a ti on at the time a free travel aw a rd

is earn ed . The liabi l i ty is ad ju s ted peri od i c a lly based on

aw a rds earn ed , aw a rds redeem ed and ch a n ges in the

O n e Pass progra m .

The Company also sells mileage credits in the OnePass

program to participating partners, such as hotels, car rental

agencies and credit card companies. During 1999,as a result

of the issuance of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 —

“ Revenue Recogn i ti on in Financial Statem en t s ,” t h e

Com p a ny ch a n ged the met h od it uses to account for the sale of

these mileage cred i t s . This ch a n ge , wh i ch to t a l ed $27 mill i on,

net of tax, was applied retroactively to January 1, 1999.

Under the new accounting method, revenue from the sale of

mileage credits is deferred and recognized when transporta-

tion is provided. Previously, the resulting revenue,net of the

i n c rem ental cost of providing futu re air travel , was recorded

in the period in which the credits were sold.

The pro forma re su l t s , a s suming the acco u n ting ch a n ge

is app l i ed retroactively, is shown bel ow (in mill i ons except

per share data):

1999 1998

Income before Cumulative Effect of

Accounting Change and 

Extraordinary Charge  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 488 $ 382

Earnings per Common Share  . . . . . . . . . . $ 7.02 $ 6.32

Earnings per Common Share

Assuming Dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6.64 $ 5.00

Net Income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 482 $ 378

Earnings per Common Share  . . . . . . . . . . $ 6.93 $ 6.26

Earnings per Common Share

Assuming Dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6.57 $ 4.95

Actual per share amounts are shown bel ow for com p a ra-

tive purpo s e s :

1999 1998

Income before Cumulative Effect of

Accounting Change and 

Extraordinary Charge  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 488 $ 387

Earnings per Common Share  . . . . . . . . . . $ 7.02 $ 6.40

Earnings per Common Share

Assuming Dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6.64 $ 5.06

Net Income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 455 $ 383

Earnings per Common Share  . . . . . . . . . . $ 6.54 $ 6.34

Earnings per Common Share

Assuming Dilution . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 6.20 $ 5.02
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(j) Passenger Traffic Commissions — Passenger traffic com-

missions are recognized as expense when the transportation

is provided and the related revenue is recognized. The

amount of passenger traffic commissions not yet recognized

as expense is included in Prepayments and other assets in

the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(k) Deferred Income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are

provi ded under the liabi l i ty met h od and ref l ect the net tax

ef fects of tem pora ry differen ces bet ween the tax basis of

a s s ets and liabi l i ties and their reported amounts in the

financial statem en t s .

(l) Maintenance and Repair Costs — Ma i n tena n ce and rep a i r

costs for own ed and leased flight equ i pm en t , including t h e

overhaul of a i rc raft com pon en t s , a re ch a r ged to opera ti n g

ex pense as incurred , except en gine overhaul costs covered

by power by the hour agreem en t s , wh i ch are acc ru ed on the

basis of h o u rs flown .

(m) Advertising Costs — The Com p a ny ex penses the co s t s

of advertising as incurred . Advertising ex pense was $60

m i ll i on , $82 mill i on and $78 mill i on for the ye a rs en ded

Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1999 and 1998, re s pectively.

(n) Sto ck Plans and Awa rds — Con ti n ental has el ected to

fo ll ow Acco u n ting Principles Boa rd Op i n i on No. 25 -

“Acco u n ting for Stock Is su ed to Employee s” ( “APB 25”) in

acco u n ting for its em p l oyee stock opti ons and its stock

purchase plans because the alternative fair value accounting

provi ded for under Statem ent of Financial Acco u n ti n g

S t a n d a rds No. 123 - “Acco u n ting for Stock - Ba s ed

Com pen s a ti on” ( “S FAS 123”) requ i res use of opti on

va lu a ti on models that were not devel oped for use in va lu-

ing em p l oyee stock opti ons or purchase ri gh t s . Un der

APB 25, s i n ce the exercise pri ce of the Com p a ny ’s

em p l oyee stock opti ons equals the market pri ce of t h e

u n derlying stock on the date of gra n t , gen era lly no com-

pen s a ti on ex pense is recogn i zed . Fu rt h erm ore , u n der

APB 25, s i n ce the stock purchase plans are con s i dered

n on com pen s a tory plans, no com pen s a ti on ex pense is

recogn i zed .

(o) Measurement of Impairment — In accordance with

S t a tem ent of Financial Acco u n ting Standards No. 1 2 1 ,

“Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and

for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of” (“SFAS 121”), the

Company records impairment losses on long-lived assets

used in operations when events and circumstances indicate

that the assets might be impaired and the undiscounted

cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less

than the carrying amount of those assets.

(p) St a rt - Up Costs — S t a tem ent of Po s i ti on 98-5,

“ Reporting on the Costs of S t a rt - Up Activi ti e s” ( “SOP 98-5”),

requ i res start-up costs to be ex pen s ed as incurred .

Con ti n ental adopted SOP 98-5 in the first qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 .

This statem ent requ i res all unamorti zed start up costs (e.g. ,

pilot training costs rel a ted to indu cti on of n ew airc raft) to

be ex pen s ed upon adopti on , re su l ting in a $6 mill i on

c u mu l a tive ef fect of a ch a n ge in acco u n ting pri n c i p l e , n et

of t a x , in the first qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 .

(q) Reclassifications — Certain recl a s s i f i c a ti ons have been

m ade in the pri or ye a rs’ financial statem ents to con form to

the current year pre s en t a ti on .

NOTE 2 � EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per common share (“EPS”) excludes dilution

and is com p uted by dividing net income ava i l a ble to

com m on stock h o l ders by the wei gh ted avera ge nu m ber

of com m on shares outstanding for the peri od . Di luted

EPS ref l ects the po ten tial diluti on that could occur if

s ec u ri ties or other obl i ga ti ons to issue com m on stock

were exerc i s ed or converted into com m on stock or

re su l ted in the issu a n ce of com m on stock that then

s h a red in the earn i n gs of the Com p a ny. The fo ll owi n g

t a ble sets forth the com p ut a ti on of basic and diluted

e a rn i n gs per share (in mill i on s ) :
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2000 1999 1998

Numerator:

Income before cumulative

effect of accounting changes 

and extraordinary charge  . . . . . . . $ 348 $ 488 $ 387

Cumulative effect of accounting

changes,net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . — (33) —

Extraordinary charge, net of tax  . . (6) — (4)

Numerator for basic earnings

per share — net income . . . . . . . . 342 455 383

Effect of dilutive securities:

Preferred Securities of Trust . . . . . . 1 — 11

63⁄4% Convertible

Subordinated Notes  . . . . . . . . . . . — 4 9

1 4 20

Numerator for diluted earnings

per share — net income after

assumed conversions  . . . . . . . . . . . $ 343 $ 459 $ 403

Denominator:

Denominator for basic earnings

per share — weighted-

average shares . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.7 69.5 60.3

Effect of dilutive securities:

Employee stock options  . . . . . . . . 1.1 1.4 1.7

Preferred Securities of Trust . . . . . 0.6 0.1 9.8

Potentially Dilutive Shares 

(Northwest Repurchase) . . . . . . . 0.4 — —

63⁄4% Convertible

Subordinated Notes  . . . . . . . . . . — 2.9 7.6

Warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — — 0.9

Dilutive potential common shares . 2.1 4.4 20.0

Denominator for diluted

earnings per share — adjusted

weighted-average and 

assumed conversions  . . . . . . . . . . 62.8 73.9 80.3

Approx i m a tely 1.1 mill i on in 2000, 1.1 mill i on in 1999

and 1.4 mill i on in 1998 of wei gh ted avera ge opti ons to pur-

chase shares of the Com p a ny ’s Class B com m on stock , p a r

va lue $.01 per share (“Class B com m on stock” ) , were not

i n clu ded in the com p ut a ti on of d i luted earn i n gs per share

because the opti on s’ exercise pri ce was gre a ter than the

avera ge market pri ce of the com m on shares and, t h erefore ,

the ef fect would have been anti d i lutive .

NOTE 3 � LONG-TERM DEBT

Lon g - term debt as of Decem ber 31 is su m m a ri zed as fo ll ows

(in mill i on s ) :

2000 1999

Secured
Notes payable,interest rates of 5.00%

to 8.50%,payable through 2019  . . . . . . $ 2,325 $ 1,817

Floating rate notes,interest rates 

of LIBOR plus 0.49% to 1.0%,

Eurodollar plus 0.87% or Commercial

Paper plus 0.40% to 0.60%,payable

through 2012  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 532 241

Credit facility, floating interest rate

of LIBOR plus 1.0%, payable

through 2002  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 150 215

Floating rate note,interest rate of

LIBOR plus 1.25%,payable

through 2004  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72 74

Notes payable,interest rates of 8.49%

to 9.46%,payable through 2008  . . . . . . 39 51

Revolving credit facility totaling 

$160 million,floating interest rate of

LIBOR plus 1.375%,payable

through 2001  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 160

Unsecured
Senior notes payable,interest rate

of 8.0%,payable through 2005  . . . . . . . 200 200

Notes payable,interest rate of 8.125%,

payable through 2008  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 110 110

Senior notes payable,interest rate

of 9.5%, payable through 2001  . . . . . . . — 242

Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 23

3,442 3,133

Less: current maturities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 272 278

Total  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,170 $ 2,855

At Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, both the LIBOR and

Eurodollar rates associated with Continental’s indebtedness

a pprox i m a ted 6.4% and 6.0%, re s pectively. Th e

Com m ercial Pa per ra te was 6.5% and 6.1% as of Decem ber

3 1 , 2000 and 1999, re s pectively.

A majori ty of Con ti n en t a l ’s property and equ i pm ent is

su bj ect to agreem ents sec u ring indebtedness of Con ti n en t a l .
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The Com p a ny has certain debt and credit fac i l i ty agree-

m en t s , wh i ch contain financial covenants re s tri cting CMI’s

i n c u rren ce of certain indebtedness and pled ge or sale of

a s s et s . In ad d i ti on , the credit fac i l i ty contains certain financial

covenants app l i c a ble to Con ti n ental and pro h i bi t s

Con ti n ental from gra n ting a sec u ri ty interest on certain of

its intern a ti onal ro ute aut h ori ties and its stock in Ai r

Mi c ron e s i a , In c . , C M I ’s parent com p a ny.

At Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , u n der the most re s tri ctive provi-

s i ons of the Com p a ny ’s debt and credit fac i l i ty agreem en t s ,

the Com p a ny had a minimum cash balance requ i rem ent of

$600 mill i on , a minimum net worth requ i rem ent of $ 8 9 8

m i ll i on and was re s tri cted from paying cash divi dends in

excess of $904 mill i on .

On April 15, 1 9 9 9 , the Com p a ny exerc i s ed its ri ght and

c a ll ed for redem pti on on May 25, 1 9 9 9 , a ll $230 mill i on of

its 63⁄4% Converti ble Su bord i n a ted No tes due 2006. Th e

n o tes were converted into approx i m a tely 7.6 mill i on share s

of Class B com m on stock du ring May 1999.

Ma tu ri ties of l on g - term debt due over the next five ye a rs

a re as fo ll ows (in mill i on s ) :

Year ending December 31,

2001  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 272

2002  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 305

2003  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 211

2004  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 277

2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 537

NOTE 4 � LEASES

Continental leases certain aircraft and other assets under

long-term lease arrangements. Other leased assets include

real property, a i rport and terminal fac i l i ti e s , sales of f i ce s ,m a i n-

ten a n ce fac i l i ti e s , training cen ters and gen eral of f i ce s . Mo s t

leases also inclu de both ren ewal opti ons and purchase opti on s .

At Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the sch edu l ed futu re minimum lease

p aym ents under capital leases and the sch edu l ed futu re mini-

mum lease rental paym ents requ i red under airc raft and en gi n e

opera ting leases, that have initial or remaining non c a n cell a bl e

lease terms in excess of one ye a r, a re as fo ll ows (in mill i on s ) :

Capital Operating
Leases Leases

Year ending December 31,

2001  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 47 $ 859

2002  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47 814

2003  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31 766

2004  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 709

2005  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 688

Later years  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 180 6,387

Total minimum lease payments  . . . . . . . . . 362 $10,223

Less: amount representing interest  . . . . . . . 126

Present value of capital leases  . . . . . . . . . . . 236

Less: current maturities of capital leases . . . 32

Long-term capital leases  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 204

Not inclu ded in the above opera ting lease table is

a pprox i m a tely $567 mill i on of a n nual avera ge minimu m

lease paym ents for each of the next five ye a rs rel a ting to

n on - a i rc raft leases, pri n c i p a lly airport and terminal fac i l i ti e s

and rel a ted equ i pm en t .

Con ti n ental is the guara n tor of a pprox i m a tely $1.6 bi ll i on

a ggrega te principal amount of t a x - exem pt special fac i l i ti e s

revenue bonds and interest thereon . These bon d s ,i s su ed by

va rious airport mu n i c i p a l i ti e s , a re paya ble solely from

rentals paid by Con ti n ental under lon g - term agreem en t s

with the re s pective governing bod i e s .

At Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny, i n cluding Ex pre s s ,

h ad 386 and 12 airc raft under opera ting and capital leases,

re s pectively. These leases have remaining lease terms ra n gi n g

f rom one month to 23 ye a rs .

The Com p a ny ’s total rental ex pense for all opera ti n g

l e a s e s , n et of su blease ren t a l s , was $1.2 bi ll i on , $1.1 bi ll i on

and $922 mill i on in 2000, 1999 and 1998, re s pectively.

NOTE 5 � FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

RISK MANAGEMENT

As part of the Company’s risk management program,

Con ti n ental uses or has used a va ri ety of financial instru m en t s ,

i n cluding petro l eum call opti on s , petro l eum swap con tract s ,

j et fuel purchase com m i tm en t s , forei gn currency avera ge ra te

opti on s , forei gn currency forw a rd con tracts and interest ra te
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cap and swap agreem en t s . The Com p a ny does not hold or

i s sue deriva tive financial instru m ents for trading purpo s e s .

E f fective October 1, 1 9 9 8 , the Com p a ny adopted

S t a tem ent of Financial Acco u n ting Standards No. 133 —

“Acco u n ting for Deriva tive In s tru m ents and Hed gi n g

Activi ti e s” ( “S FAS 133”) and accord i n gly recogn i zes all

deriva tives on the balance sheet at fair va lu e .

Notional Amounts and Credit Exposure of Derivatives — The

n o ti onal amounts of deriva tive financial instru m en t s

summarized below do not represent amounts exchanged

between parties and, therefore, are not a measure of the

Company’s exposure resulting from its use of derivatives.

The amounts exchanged are calculated based upon the

notional amounts as well as other terms of the instruments,

wh i ch rel a te to interest ra te s , exch a n ge ra tes or other indice s .

Fu el Pri ce Risk Ma n a gem ent — The Com p a ny uses a

com bi n a ti on of petro l eum call opti on s , petro l eum swap

con tract s , and jet fuel purchase com m i tm ents to provi de

s ome short - term pro tecti on against a sharp increase in

j et fuel pri ce s . These instru m ents gen era lly cover up to

100% of the Com p a ny ’s forec a s ted jet fuel needs for three

to six mon t h s .

The Com p a ny accounts for the call opti ons and swap

con tracts as cash flow hed ge s . In accord a n ce with SFA S

1 3 3 , su ch financial instru m ents are recorded at fair va lu e

with the of fs et to acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive

i n come (loss), n et of a pp l i c a ble income taxes and hed ge

i n ef fectiven e s s , and recogn i zed as a com pon ent of f u el

ex pense wh en the underlying fuel being hed ged is used .

The inef fective porti on of these call opti ons and swap

a greem ents is determ i n ed based on the correl a ti on bet ween

West Texas In term ed i a te Cru de Oil pri ces and jet fuel

pri ces as well as the ch a n ge in the time va lue of the opti on s .

Hed ge inef fectiveness is inclu ded in fuel ex pense in the

accom p a nying con s o l i d a ted statem ent of opera ti ons and

was not material for the ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 ,

1999 and 1998. For the ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2000 and

1 9 9 9 , the Com p a ny recogn i zed approx i m a tely $44 mill i on

and $15 mill i on , re s pectively, of n et losses rel a ted to the

porti on of the hed ging instru m ent exclu ded from the

a s s e s s m ent of h ed ge ef fectiveness (pri m a ri ly time va lu e ) .

These losses are also inclu ded in fuel ex pense in the accom-

p a nying con s o l i d a ted statem ent of opera ti on s .

The Com p a ny had petro l eum call opti ons out s t a n d i n g

with an aggrega te noti onal amount of a pprox i m a tely $329

m i ll i on and $310 mill i on at Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999,

re s pectively. The fair va lue of these hed ges was not materi a l .

Fo rei gn Cu rrency Exch a n ge Risk Ma n a gem ent — Th e

Company uses a combination of foreign currency average

ra te opti ons and forw a rd con tracts to hed ge against the

currency risk associated with its forecasted Japanese yen-

denominated net cash flows for the following nine to twelve

months. The average rate options and forward contracts

have only nominal intrinsic value at the time of purchase.

The Com p a ny accounts for these instru m ents as cash

f l ow hed ge s . In accord a n ce with SFAS 133, su ch financial

i n s tru m ents are recorded at fair va lue with the of fs et to

acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive income (loss), n et of

a pp l i c a ble income taxes and hed ge inef fectiven e s s , a n d

recogn i zed as a com pon ent of o t h er revenue wh en the

u n derlying net cash flows are re a l i zed . The Com p a ny

m e a su res hed ge ef fectiveness of avera ge ra te opti ons and

forw a rd con tracts based on the forw a rd pri ce of t h e

u n derlying curren c y. Hed ge inef fectiveness was not materi a l

du ring 2000, 1999 or 1998.

At Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny had yen forw a rd

con tracts outstanding with an aggrega te noti onal amount

of $188 mill i on and an unre a l i zed gain of $22 mill i on . Th e

n o ti onal amount of the Com p a ny ’s yen forw a rd con tract s

o utstanding at Decem ber 31, 1999 was $197 mill i on wi t h

an unre a l i zed loss of $5 mill i on . Un re a l i zed gains (losses)

a re recorded in other current assets (liabi l i ties) with the

of fs et to other acc u mu l a ted com preh en s ive incom e , n et of

a pp l i c a ble income taxes and hed ge inef fectiven e s s . Th e

u n re a l i zed loss at Decem ber 31, 2000 wi ll be recogn i zed in

e a rn i n gs within the next twelve mon t h s .
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Interest Rate Risk Management — The Company entered

into interest rate cap and interest rate swap agreements to

reduce the impact of potential increases on floating rate

debt. The interest rate cap had a notional amount of $84

million and $106 million as of December 31,2000 and 1999,

respectively, and is effective through July 31, 2001. The

interest rate swap, which was entered into during 2000,had

a notional amount of $176 million at December 31, 2000.

The Company accounts for the interest rate cap and swap as

cash flow hedges whereby the fair value of the interest rate

cap and swap is ref l ected in other assets in the accom p a nyi n g

consolidated balance sheet with the offset, net of income

taxes and any hedge ineffectiveness (which is not material),

recorded as acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive incom e

(loss). The fair value of the interest rate cap and swap was

not material as of December 31, 2000 or 1999. Amounts

recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income are

amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the

term of the related hedge. Such amounts were not material

during 2000,1999 or 1998.

Other Financial Instruments

(a) Cash equivalents — Cash equ iva l ents are carri ed at co s t

and consist pri m a ri ly of com m ercial paper with ori gi n a l

m a tu ri ties of t h ree months or less and approx i m a te fair

va lue due to their short matu ri ty.

(b) Short-term Investments — S h ort - term inve s tm en t s

consist pri m a ri ly of com m ercial paper with ori gi n a l

m a tu ri ties in excess of 90 days but less than 270 days

and approx i m a te fair va lue due to their short matu ri ty.

The Com p a ny classifies these inve s tm ents as hel d - to -

m a tu ri ty sec u ri ti e s .

(c) Inve s tm ent in Equ i ty Sec u ri ties — Con ti n en t a l ’s

i nve s tm ent in Am erica West Ho l d i n gs Corpora ti on

(“America West Holdings”) was classified as an available-

for-sale security and was carried at an aggregate market

value of approximately $3 million at December 31, 1999. In

Decem ber 2000, the Com p a ny sold its inve s tm ent in

America West Holdings and a right of first refusal, resulting

in a gain of $9 million.

In May 1998, the Com p a ny acqu i red a 49% interest in

Compania Pa n a m ena de Avi ac i on , S . A . ( “Cop a”) for $53

m i ll i on . The inve s tm ent is acco u n ted for under the equ i ty

m et h od of acco u n ti n g. As of Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999,

the excess of the amount at wh i ch the inve s tm ent is carri ed

and the amount of u n derlying equ i ty in the net assets was

$41 mill i on and $40 mill i on , re s pectively. This differen ce is

tre a ted as goodwi ll and is being amorti zed over 40 ye a rs .

On October 20, 1 9 9 9 , Con ti n ental sold its interest in

A M A D E U S G l obal Travel Di s tri buti on , S . A . ( “A M A D E U S” )

for $409 mill i on , i n cluding a special divi den d . The sale,

wh i ch occ u rred as part of A M A D E U S’s initial public of feri n g,

re su l ted in a gain of a pprox i m a tely $297 mill i on .

At both Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999, the Com p a ny

own ed approx i m a tely 357,000 depo s i tory certi f i c a tes con-

verti bl e , su bj ect to certain re s tri cti on s , i n to the com m on

s tock of Equant N.V. ( “ Equ a n t” ) , wh i ch com p l eted an initi a l

p u blic of fering in Ju ly 1998. As of Decem ber 31, 2000 and

1 9 9 9 , the esti m a ted fair va lue of these depo s i tory certi f i-

c a tes was approx i m a tely $9 mill i on and $40 mill i on ,

re s pectively, b a s ed upon the publ i cly traded market va lu e

of Equant com m on stock . Si n ce the fair va lue of t h e

Com p a ny ’s inve s tm ent in the depo s i tory certi f i c a tes is not

re ad i ly determ i n a ble (i.e., the depo s i tory certi f i c a tes are

not traded on a sec u ri ties exch a n ge ) , the inve s tm ent is 

c a rri ed at co s t , wh i ch was not material as of Decem ber 31,

2000 or 1999.

In December 1999,the Company acquired a 28% interest

in Gu l fs tream In tern a ti onal Ai rl i n e s , In c . ( “Gu l fs tre a m” ) .

The inve s tm ent is acco u n ted for under the equ i ty met h od

of accounting. At December 31,2000 and 1999,the carrying

va lue of the inve s tm ent in Gu l fs tream was $8 mill i on and

$10 million, respectively. The Company has also guaranteed

a pprox i m a tely $25 mill i on of debt for Gu l fs tream as of

Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 .

In 1999, Continental received 1,500,000 warrants to pur-

chase common stock of priceline.com, Inc. at an exercise

price of $59.93 per share (the “Warrants”). In the fourth
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quarter of 1999, the Company sold the Warrants for $18

million, resulting in a loss of approximately $4 million.

(d) Debt — The fair value of the Company’s debt with a

carrying value of $2.9 billion and $2.8 billion at December

3 1 , 2000 and 1999, re s pectively, e s ti m a ted based on the

discounted amount of future cash flows using the current

i n c rem ental ra te of borrowing for a similar liabi l i ty or market

pri ce s ,a pprox i m a ted $2.7 bi ll i on and $2.5 bi ll i on , re s pectively.

The fair va lue of the remaining debt (with a carrying va lu e

of $567 mill i on and $383 mill i on at Decem ber 31, 2000 and

1 9 9 9 , re s pectively ) , was not practi c a ble to esti m a te .

(e) Preferred Securities of Trust — As of December 31,

2 0 0 0 , the fair va lue of the Com p a ny ’s 5,000,000 6%

Convertible Preferred Securities, Term Income Deferrable

Equity Securities (“TIDES”), with a carrying value of $242

million, estimated based on market quotes, approximated

$259 million.

(f) Warrants — The Com p a ny is the holder of w a rrants in

a nu m ber of s t a rt-up eCom m erce companies foc u s ed on

va rious segm ents of the travel distri buti on net work . Th e

w a rrants are recorded at fair va lue with the of fs et recorded

to non - opera ting incom e . The fair va lue of these warra n t s

was not material at Decem ber 31, 2000 or 1999.

(g) Other — The Com p a ny has a com pen s a ti on plan for

certain em p l oyees that provi des a cash ben efit that is

i n dexed to the apprec i a ti on in fair va lue of a nu m ber of

u n derlying equ i ty sec u ri ties of e Com m erce bu s i n e s s e s . Th e

ben efit formula meets the def i n i ti on of a deriva tive , and is

accord i n gly acco u n ted for at fair va lu e , with the of fs et

recorded to non - opera ting ex pen s e . The fair va lue of t h e

deriva tive was not material at Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 .

Credit Expo su re of Fi n a n cial In s tru m ents — The Com p a ny

is ex po s ed to credit losses in the event of n on - perform a n ce

by issu ers of financial instru m en t s . To manage cred i t

ri s k s , the Com p a ny sel ects issu ers based on credit ra ti n gs ,

limits its ex po su re to a single issu er under def i n ed

Com p a ny guidel i n e s , and mon i tors the market po s i ti on

with each co u n terp a rty.

NOTE 6 � PREFERRED SECURITIES OF TRUST

In Novem ber 2000, Con ti n ental Ai rlines Finance Trust II, a

Del aw a re statutory business trust (the “Tru s t”) with re s pect

to wh i ch the Com p a ny owns all of the com m on trust sec u ri-

ti e s , com p l eted a priva te placem ent of 5,000,000 6%

Converti ble Preferred Sec u ri ti e s , Term In come Deferra bl e

Equ i ty Sec u ri ti e s . The TIDES have a liqu i d a ti on va lue of $ 5 0

per preferred sec u ri ty and are converti ble at any time at the

opti on of the holder into shares of Class B com m on stock at

a convers i on ra te of $60 per share of Class B com m on stock

( equ iva l ent to approx i m a tely 0.8333 share of Class B com-

m on stock for each preferred sec u ri ty ) . Di s tri buti ons on the

preferred sec u ri ties are paya ble by the Trust at an annual ra te

of 6% of the liqu i d a ti on va lue of $50 per preferred sec u ri ty

and are inclu ded in Di s tri buti ons on Preferred Sec u ri ties of

Trust in the accom p a nying Con s o l i d a ted Statem ent of

Opera ti on s . The proceeds of the priva te placem en t , wh i ch

to t a l ed $242 mill i on (net of $8 mill i on of u n derwri ting com-

m i s s i ons and ex pense) are inclu ded in Con ti n en t a l - Obl i ga ted

Ma n d a tori ly Redeem a ble Preferred Sec u ri ties of Su b s i d i a ry

Trust Holding So l ely Converti ble Su bord i n a ted Deben tu re s

in the accom p a nying Con s o l i d a ted Ba l a n ce Sheet s .

The sole assets of the trust are 6% Convertible Junior

Su bord i n a ted Deben tu res (“Converti ble Su bord i n a ted

Debentures”) with an aggregate principal amount of $250

million issued by the Company and which mature on

Novem ber 15, 2 0 3 0 . The Converti ble Su bord i n a ted

Debentures are redeemable by Continental, in whole or in

part, on or after November 20,2003 at designated redem p-

ti on pri ce s . If Con ti n ental redeems the Converti bl e

Su bord i n a ted Deben tu re s , the Trust must redeem the
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TIDES on a pro rata basis having an aggrega te liqu i d a-

ti on va lue equal to the aggrega te principal amount of t h e

Converti ble Su bord i n a ted Deben tu res redeem ed .

Ot h erwi s e , the TIDES wi ll be redeem ed upon matu ri ty

of the Converti ble Su bord i n a ted Deben tu re s , unless 

previ o u s ly converted .

Taking into con s i dera ti on the Com p a ny ’s obl i ga ti on s

u n der (i) the Preferred Sec u ri ties Gu a ra n tee rel a ting to the

T I D E S , (ii) the In den tu re rel a ting to the Converti bl e

Su bord i n a ted Deben tu res to pay all debt and obl i ga ti on s

and all costs and ex penses of the Trust (other than U. S .

withholding taxes) and (iii) the In den tu re , the Decl a ra ti on

rel a ting to the TIDES and the Converti ble Su bord i n a ted

Deben tu re s , Con ti n ental has fully and uncon d i ti on a lly

g u a ra n teed paym ent of (i) the distri buti ons on the TIDES,

(ii) the amount paya ble upon redem pti on of the TIDES,

and (iii) the liqu i d a ti on amount of the TIDES.

The Converti ble Su bord i n a ted Deben tu res and rel a ted

i n come statem ent ef fects are el i m i n a ted in the Com p a ny ’s

con s o l i d a ted financial statem en t s .

Con ti n ental Ai rlines Finance Tru s t , a Del aw a re statutory

business trust with re s pect to wh i ch the Com p a ny own ed

a ll of the com m on trust sec u ri ti e s , h ad 2,298,327 8-1/2%

Converti ble Trust Ori gi n a ted Preferred Sec u ri ti e s

( “TO Pr S”) outstanding at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 8 . In

Novem ber 1998, the Com p a ny exerc i s ed its ri ght and call ed

for redem pti on approx i m a tely half of its out s t a n d i n g

TO Pr S . The TO PrS were converti ble into shares of Class B

com m on stock at a convers i on pri ce of $24.18 per share of

Class B com m on stock . As a re sult of the call for redem pti on ,

2,688,173 TO PrS were converted into 5,558,649 shares of

Class B com m on stock . In Decem ber 1998, the Com p a ny

c a ll ed for redem pti on the remaining outstanding TO Pr S .

As a re sult of the second call , the remaining 2,298,327

TO PrS were converted into 4,752,522 shares of Class B

com m on stock du ring Ja nu a ry 1999.

Di s tri buti ons on the preferred sec u ri ties were paya bl e

by Con ti n ental Ai rlines Finance Trust at the annual ra te of

81⁄2% of the liqu i d a ti on va lue of $50 per preferred sec u ri ty

and are inclu ded in Di s tri buti ons on Preferred Sec u ri ti e s

of Trust in the accom p a nying Con s o l i d a ted Statem ents of

Opera ti on s .

NOTE 7 � REDEEMABLE COMMON, PREFERRED,

COMMON AND TREASURY STOCK

Red e em a ble Common Sto ck — On Novem ber 15, 2 0 0 0 , t h e

Com p a ny en tered into a nu m ber of a greem ents wi t h

Nort hwest Ai rlines Corpora ti on (“Nort hwe s t”) and som e

of its affiliates under wh i ch the Com p a ny wo u l d , a m on g

o t h er things , rep u rchase approx i m a tely 6.7 mill i on share s

of Class A com m on stock , par va lue $.01 per share (“Cl a s s

A com m on stock” ) , of Con ti n ental own ed by Nort hwe s t

for $450 mill i on . As a re sult of the Com p a ny ’s com m i tm en t

to rep u rchase these Class A share s , su ch amounts are

i n clu ded in Redeem a ble Com m on Stock in the accom p a nyi n g

Con s o l i d a ted Ba l a n ce Sheets at Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 . See

No te 16.

Preferred Stock — Con ti n ental has 10 mill i on shares of

a ut h ori zed preferred stock ,n one of wh i ch was out s t a n d i n g a s

of Decem ber 31, 2000 or 1999.

Common Stock — Con ti n ental has two classes of com m on

s tock issu ed and out s t a n d i n g, Class A com m on stock and

Class B com m on stock . E ach share of Class A com m on

s tock is en ti t l ed to 10 vo tes per share and each share of

Class B com m on stock is en ti t l ed to one vo te per share . In

ad d i ti on , Con ti n ental has aut h ori zed 50 mill i on shares of

Class D com m on stock , par va lue $.01 per share , n one of

wh i ch is out s t a n d i n g. See No te 16.

The Com p a ny ’s Certi f i c a te of In corpora ti on perm i t s

s h a res of the Com p a ny ’s Class A com m on stock to be con-

verted into an equal nu m ber of s h a res of Class B com m on

s tock . Du ring 2000 and 1999, 357,311 and 85,883 shares of

the Com p a ny ’s Class A com m on stock , re s pectively, were so

converted . See No te 16.
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Treasury Stock — Con ti n ental began a stock rep u rch a s e

program in 1998 under wh i ch it rep u rch a s ed a total of 2 8 . 1

m i ll i on shares of Class B com m on stock for a total of

a pprox i m a tely $1.2 bi ll i on thro u gh Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 . Of

the approximately $287 million available in the program a s

of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , $200 mill i on wi ll be used as part of

the purchase pri ce of 6,685,279 shares of Class A com m on

s tock held by Nort hwe s t . See No te 16. The Com p a ny plans

to use the remaining balance in the progra m ,a l ong with (i)

on e - h a l f of f utu re net income (excluding special gains and

ch a r ge s ) , (ii) all the proceeds from the sale of n on - s tra tegi c

a s s ets and (iii) the amount of cash proceeds received by the

Com p a ny for the purchase of com m on stock by em p l oyee s

and other participants under its em p l oyee stock purch a s e

and stock opti on plans to con ti nue to rep u rchase its com m on

s tock in the futu re .

Sto ck h ol d er Ri ghts Plan — E f fective Novem ber 20, 1 9 9 8 ,

the Com p a ny adopted a stock h o l der ri ghts plan (the

“ Ri ghts Plan”) in con n ecti on with the dispo s i ti on by Ai r

Pa rtn ers , L . P. ( “Air Pa rtn ers”) of its interest in the

Com p a ny to Nort hwe s t .

The ri ghts become exerc i s a ble upon the earl i er of (i) the

tenth day fo ll owing a public announcem ent or public discl o-

su re of f acts indicating that a pers on or group of a f f i l i a ted or

a s s oc i a ted pers ons has acqu i red ben eficial own ership of 1 5 %

(20% in the case of an In s ti tuti onal Inve s tor) or more of t h e

total nu m ber of vo tes en ti t l ed to be cast gen era lly by the

h o l ders of the com m on stock of the Com p a ny then out-

s t a n d i n g, vo ting toget h er as a single class (su ch pers on or

group being an “Acqu i ring Pers on” ) , or (ii) the tenth bu s i n e s s

d ay (or su ch later date as may be determ i n ed by acti on of t h e

Boa rd of Di rectors pri or to su ch time as any pers on becom e s

an Acqu i ring Pers on) fo ll owing the com m en cem ent of , or

a n n o u n cem ent of an inten ti on to make , a ten der of fer or

exch a n ge of fer the con su m m a ti on of wh i ch would re sult in

a ny pers on becoming an Acqu i ring Pers on . Certain pers on s

and en ti ties rel a ted to the Com p a ny, Air Pa rtn ers or

Nort hwest at the time the Ri ghts Plan was adopted are

exem pt from the def i n i ti on of “Acqu i ring Pers on .”

The ri ghts wi ll ex p i re on Novem ber 20, 2008 unless

ex ten ded or unless the ri ghts are earl i er redeem ed or

exch a n ged by the Com p a ny.

Su bj ect to certain ad ju s tm en t s ,i f a ny pers on becomes an

Acqu i ring Pers on , e ach holder of a ri gh t , o t h er than ri gh t s

ben ef i c i a lly own ed by the Acqu i ring Pers on and its affiliate s

and assoc i a tes (wh i ch ri ghts wi ll there a f ter be voi d ) , wi ll

t h ere a f ter have the ri ght to receive , u pon exercise thereof ,

that nu m ber of s h a res of Class B com m on stock having a

m a rket va lue of t wo times the exercise pri ce ($200, su bj ect

to ad ju s tm ent) of the ri gh t .

If at any time after a pers on becomes an Acqu i ri n g

Pers on , (i) the Com p a ny mer ges into any other pers on , ( i i )

a ny pers on mer ges into the Com p a ny and all of the out-

standing com m on stock does not remain outstanding after

su ch mer ger, or (iii) the Com p a ny sells 50% or more of i t s

con s o l i d a ted assets or earning power, e ach holder of a ri gh t

( o t h er than the Acqu i ring Pers on and its affiliates and asso-

c i a tes) wi ll have the ri ght to receive , u pon the exerc i s e

t h ereof , that nu m ber of s h a res of com m on stock of t h e

acquiring corporation (including the Company as successor

t h ereto or as the su rviving corpora ti on) wh i ch at the ti m e

of su ch tra n s acti on wi ll have a market va lue of t wo ti m e s

the exercise pri ce of the ri gh t .

At any time after any pers on becomes an Acqu i ri n g

Pers on , and pri or to the acqu i s i ti on by any pers on or gro u p

of a majori ty of the Com p a ny ’s vo ting power, the Boa rd of

Di rectors may exch a n ge the ri ghts (other than ri gh t s

own ed by su ch Acqu i ring Pers on wh i ch have become voi d ) ,

in whole or in part , at an exch a n ge ra tio of one share of

Class B com m on stock per ri ght (su bj ect to ad ju s tm en t ) .

At any time pri or to any pers on becoming an Acqu i ri n g

Pers on , the Boa rd of Di rectors may redeem the ri ghts at a

pri ce of $.001 per ri gh t . The Ri ghts Plan may be amen ded

by the Boa rd of Di rectors wi t h o ut the con s ent of the holders

of the ri gh t s , except that from and after su ch time as any

pers on becomes an Acqu i ring Pers on no su ch amen d m en t

m ay advers ely affect the interests of the holders of t h e

ri ghts (other than the Acqu i ring Pers on and its affiliate s

and associates). Until a right is exercised,the holder thereof,
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as su ch , wi ll have no ri ghts as a stock h o l der of t h e

Com p a ny, i n clu d i n g, wi t h o ut limitati on , the ri ght to vo te

or to receive divi den d s . See No te 16.

NOTE 8 � STOCK PLANS AND AWARDS

Stock Options — On May 23, 2000, the stockholders of the

Company approved the Continental Airlines, Inc. Incentive

Plan 2000 (the “2000 Incentive Plan”). The 2000 Incentive

Plan provi des that the Com p a ny may grant aw a rd s

(options, restricted stock awards, performance aw a rds or

i n cen tive aw a rds) to non - em p l oyee directors of t h e

Company or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Subject to adjustment as provided in the 2000 Incentive

Plan, the aggregate number of shares of Class B common

stock that may be issued under the 2000 Incentive Plan may

not exceed 3,000,000 shares, which may be originally issued

or treasury shares or a combination thereof.

The stockholders of the Company have approved the

Company’s 1998 Stock Incentive Plan,1997 Stock Incentive

Plan and 1994 In cen tive Equ i ty Plan (co ll ectively, t h e

“ P l a n s”) under wh i ch the Com p a ny may issue shares 

of re s tri cted Class B com m on stock or grant opti ons to

purchase shares of Class B common stock to non-employee

directors and employees of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Su bj ect to ad ju s tm ent as provi ded in the Plans, the aggrega te

number of shares of Class B common stock that may be

issued may not exceed 16,500,000 shares, which may be

originally issued or treasury shares or a combination there-

of. Options granted under the Plans are awarded with an

exercise price equal to the fair market value of the stock on

the date of grant. The total shares remaining available for

grant under the 2000 Incentive Plan and the Plans at

December 31, 2000 was 2.5 million. No options may be

aw a rded under the 1994 In cen tive Equ i ty Plan after

December 31, 1999. Stock options granted under the Plans

generally vest over a period of three to four years and have

a term of five years.

Un der the terms of the Plans, a ch a n ge of con tro l

would re sult in all outstanding opti ons under these plans

becoming exerc i s a ble in full and re s tri cti ons on re s tri cted

s h a res being term i n a ted .

The table bel ow su m m a ri zes stock opti on tra n s acti ons pursuant to the Com p a ny ’s 2000 In cen tive Plan and the Plans (share

data in thousands):

2000 1999 1998

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at Beginning of Year . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,005 $ 32.69 9,683 $ 30.31 5,998 $ 22.62

Granted  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,514 $ 42.20 1,055 $ 33.38 6,504 $ 43.75

Exercised  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,885) $ 25.65 (1,464) $ 16.54 (807) $ 19.53

Cancelled  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (166) $ 34.35 (269) $ 37.41 (2,012) $ 55.18

Outstanding at End of Year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,468 $ 37.30 9,005 $ 32.69 9,683 $ 30.31

Options exercisable at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,318 $ 35.47 4,845 $ 29.13 5,174 $ 23.56
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The fo ll owing tables su m m a ri ze the ra n ge of exerc i s e

pri ces and the wei gh ted avera ge remaining con tractual life

of the opti ons outstanding and the ra n ge of exercise pri ce s

for the opti ons exerc i s a ble at Decem ber 31, 2000 (share

data in thousands):

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Average Weighted

Range of Remaining Average
Exercise Contractual Exercise
Prices Outstanding Life Price

$4.56–$29.19 1,722 2.18 $27.55

$29.25–$32.13 853 2.81 $31.77

$32.25–$35.00 2,272 2.96 $34.96

$35.13–$43.31 1,501 4.47 $41.72

$43.50–$56.81 1,120 3.05 $55.36

$4.56–$56.81 7,468 3.08 $37.30

Opti ons Exerc i s a bl e

Weighted
Average

Range of Exercise
Exercise Prices Exercisable Price

$4.56–$29.19 1,197 $26.83

$29.25–$32.13 290 $31.11

$32.25–$35.00 1,140 $34.97

$35.13–$43.31 103 $40.64

$43.50–$56.81 588 $55.28

$4.56–$56.81 3,318 $35.47

Employee Stock Purchase Plan — All em p l oyees of t h e

Com p a ny are el i gi ble to parti c i p a te in the Com p a ny ’s stock

p u rchase program under wh i ch they may purchase share s

of Class B com m on stock of the Com p a ny at 85% of t h e

l ower of the fair market va lue on the first day of the opti on

peri od or the last day of the opti on peri od . Du ring 2000

and 1999, 481,950 and 526,729 share s , re s pectively, of Cl a s s

B com m on stock were issu ed at pri ces ra n gi n g f rom $27.73

to $38.30 in 2000 and $27.84 to $49.41 in 1999. Du ri n g

1 9 9 8 , 305,978 shares of Class B com m on stock were issu ed

at pri ces ra n ging from $29.33 to $49.41.

Pro Forma SFAS 123 Results — Pro forma inform a ti on

rega rding net income and earn i n gs per share has been

determ i n ed as if the Com p a ny had acco u n ted for its

em p l oyee stock opti ons and purchase ri ghts under the fair

va lue met h od of S FAS 123. The fair va lue for these opti on s

was esti m a ted at the date of grant using a Bl ack - S ch o l e s

opti on pricing model with the fo ll owing wei gh ted - avera ge

a s su m pti ons for 2000, 1999 and 1998, re s pectively: ri s k -

f ree interest ra tes of 6 . 5 % , 4.9% and 4.9%, d ivi dend yi el d s

of 0 % ; vo l a ti l i ty factors of the ex pected market pri ce of t h e

Com p a ny ’s Class B com m on stock of 47% for 2000, 4 3 %

for 1999 and 40% for 1998, and a wei gh ted - avera ge ex pected

l i fe of the opti on of 3.6 ye a rs , 3.1 ye a rs and 3.0 ye a rs . Th e

wei gh ted avera ge grant date fair va lue of the stock opti on s

gra n ted in 2000, 1999 and 1998 was $17.37, $11.13 and

$13.84 per opti on , re s pectively.

The fair va lue of the purchase ri ghts under the stock pur-

chase plans was also esti m a ted using the Bl ack - S ch o l e s

m odel with the fo ll owing wei gh ted - avera ge assu m pti on s

for 2000, 1999 and 1998, re s pectively: risk free interest ra te s

of 5 . 9 % , 4.7% and 4.7%; d ivi dend yi elds of 0 % , ex pected

vo l a ti l i ty of 47% for 2000, 43% for 1999 and 40% for 1998;

and an ex pected life of .25 ye a rs for each of 2 0 0 0 , 1999 and

1 9 9 8 . The wei gh ted - avera ge fair va lue of the purch a s e

ri ghts gra n ted in 2000, 1999 and 1998 was $10.18, $ 7 . 7 2

and $9.10, re s pectively.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed

for use in esti m a ting the fair va lue of traded opti on s , wh i ch

h ave no ve s ting re s tri cti ons and are fully tra n s fera bl e . In

ad d i ti on , opti on va lu a ti on models requ i re the input of

h i gh ly su bj ective assu m pti ons including the ex pected stock

pri ce vo l a ti l i ty. Because the Com p a ny ’s em p l oyee stock

opti ons and purchase ri ghts have ch a racteri s tics sign i f i-

c a n t ly different from those of traded opti on s , and bec a u s e

ch a n ges in the su bj ective input assu m pti ons can materi a lly

a f fect the fair va lue esti m a te , in managem en t’s op i n i on , t h e

ex i s ting models do not nece s s a ri ly provi de a rel i a ble singl e

m e a su re of the fair va lue of its em p l oyee stock opti ons and

p u rchase ri gh t s .
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As suming that the Com p a ny had acco u n ted for its

em p l oyee stock opti ons and purchase ri ghts using the fair

va lue met h od and amorti zed the re su l ting amount to

ex pense over the opti on s’ ve s ting peri od s , n et incom e

would have been redu ced by $20 mill i on , $24 mill i on and

$18 mill i on for the ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1 9 9 9

and 1998, re s pectively. Basic EPS would have been redu ced

by 33 cen t s , 35 cents and 30 cents for the ye a rs en ded

Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1999 and 1998, re s pectively, and diluted

EPS would have been redu ced by 32 cen t s , 33 cents and 23

cents for the same peri od s , re s pectively. The pro form a

ef fect on net income is not repre s en t a tive of the pro form a

ef fects on net income in futu re ye a rs because it did not take

into consideration pro forma compensation expense related

to grants made pri or to 1995.

NOTE 9 � ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

The com pon ents of acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive income (loss) are as fo ll ows (in mill i on s ) :

Un re a l i zed
Mi n i mu m Un re a l i zed G a i n / ( Loss) on

Pen s i on G a i n / ( Lo s s ) Deriva tive
L i a bi l i ty on Inve s tm en t s In s tru m en t s To t a l

Ba l a n ce at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 7 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ ( 6 ) $ 4 $ — $ ( 2 )

Cu rrent year net ch a n ge in acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive income (loss)  . . . . . . . . ( 7 6 ) ( 4 ) ( 6 ) ( 8 6 )

Ba l a n ce at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 8 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ( 8 2 ) — ( 6 ) ( 8 8 )

Cu rrent year net ch a n ge in acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive income (loss)  . . . . . . . . 8 2 1 4 8 7

Ba l a n ce at Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . — 1 ( 2 ) ( 1 )

Cu rrent year net ch a n ge in acc u mu l a ted other com preh en s ive income (loss)  . . . . . . . . — ( 1 ) 1 5 1 4

Ba l a n ce at Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ — $ — $ 1 3 $ 1 3

NOTE 10 � EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension

and defined contribution (including 401(k) savings) plans.

Substantially all domestic employees of the Company are

covered by one or more of these plans. The benefits under

the active defined benefit pension plan are based on years of

service and an employee’s final average compensation. For

the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, total

expense for the defined contribution plan was $17 million,

$14 million and $8 million, respectively.

The fo ll owing table sets forth the def i n ed ben efit pen-

s i on plans’ ch a n ge in proj ected ben efit obl i ga ti on for 2000

and 1999:

2000 1999
(in millions)

Projected benefit obligation

at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,300 $ 1,230

Service cost  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 93 66

Interest cost  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113 90

Plan amendments  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54 54

Actuarial (gains) losses  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16) (47)

Benefits paid  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (56) (93)

Projected benefit obligation

at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,488 $ 1,300
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The fo ll owing table sets forth the def i n ed ben efit pen s i on

p l a n s’ ch a n ge in the fair va lue of plan assets for 2000 and 1999:

2000 1999
(in millions)

Fair value of plan assets 

at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1,013 $ 781

Actual return on plan assets  . . . . . . . . . . . (33) 138

Employer contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 282 187

Benefits paid  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (56) (93)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year  . . . $ 1,206 $ 1,013

Pen s i on cost recogn i zed in the accom p a nying con s o l i-

d a ted balance sheets is com p uted as fo ll ows :

2000 1999
(in millions)

Funded status of the plans — 

net underfunded  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (282) $ (287)

Unrecognized net actuarial loss . . . . . . . . . 270 152

Unrecognized prior service cost  . . . . . . . . 178 143

Net amount recognized  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 166 $ 8

Prepaid benefit cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 184 $ 12

Accrued benefit liability . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (27) (78)

Intangible asset  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 74

Net amount recognized  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 166 $ 8

Net peri odic def i n ed ben efit pen s i on cost for 2000, 1 9 9 9

and 1998 inclu ded the fo ll owing com pon en t s :

2000 1999 1998
(in millions)

Service cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 93 $ 66 $ 55

Interest cost  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 113 90 69

Expected return on plan assets . . . . . (103) (84) (64)

Amortization of prior service cost . . 18 13 6

Amortization of unrecognized

net actuarial loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 13 4

Net periodic benefit cost  . . . . . . . . . $ 124 $ 98 $ 70

The fo ll owing actu a rial assu m pti ons were used to deter-

mine the actu a rial pre s ent va lue of the Com p a ny ’s proj ected

ben efit obl i ga ti on :

2000 1999 1998
(in millions)

Wei gh ted avera ge assu m ed

d i s count ra te  . . . . . . . 8 . 0 0 % 8 . 2 5 % 7 . 0 0 %

Ex pected lon g - term 

ra te of retu rn on 

plan asset s . . . . . . . . . . 9 . 5 0 % 9 . 5 0 % 9 . 5 0 %

Wei gh ted avera ge ra te

of com pen s a ti on 

i n c re a s e . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 . 9 8 % - 5 . 2 7 % 4 . 9 8 % - 5 . 2 7 % 5 . 3 0 %

The proj ected ben efit obl i ga ti on , acc u mu l a ted ben ef i t

obl i ga ti on and the fair va lue of plan assets for the pen s i on

plans with proj ected ben efit obl i ga ti ons and acc u mu l a ted

benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $39 million,

$26 mill i on and $0, re s pectively, as of Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 ,

and $1.3 bi ll i on , $1.1 bi ll i on and $1.0 bi ll i on , re s pectively,

as of Decem ber 31, 1 9 9 9 .

During 1999 and 1998,the Company amended its benefit

plan as a re sult of ch a n ges in ben efits pursuant to new

co ll ective bargaining agreem en t s .

Plan assets consist pri m a ri ly of equ i ty sec u ri ti e s ,l on g - term

debt sec u ri ties and short - term inve s tm en t s .

Con ti n en t a l ’s policy is to fund the non con tri butory

def i n ed ben efit pen s i on plans in accord a n ce with In tern a l

Revenue Servi ce (“IRS”) requ i rem ents as mod i f i ed , to the

ex tent app l i c a bl e , by agreem ents with the IRS.

The Company also has a profit sharing program under

which an award pool consisting of 15% of the Company’s

annual pre-tax earnings, subject to certain adjustments, is

distributed each year to substantially all employees (other

than em p l oyees whose co ll ective bargaining agreem en t

provides otherwise or who otherwise receive profit sharing

payments as required by local law) on a pro rata basis

according to base salary. The profit sharing ex pense inclu ded

in the accom p a nying Con s o l i d a ted Statem ents of Opera ti on s

for the years ended December 31, 2000,1999 and 1998 was

$66 million, $62 million and $86 million, respectively.
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NOTE 11 � INCOME TAXES

The recon c i l i a ti ons of i n come tax com p uted at the Un i ted States federal statutory tax ra tes to income tax provi s i on for the

ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1999 and 1998 are as fo ll ows (in mill i on s ) :

Amount Percentage

2000 1999 1998 2000 1999 1998

Income tax provision at United States statutory rates  . . . . . . . . . . $ 199 $ 279 $ 227 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State income tax provision (net of federal benefit) . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 12 10 1.8 1.5 1.5

Meals and entertainment disallowance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 11 10 1.8 1.3 1.5

Other  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 8 1 0.3 1.1 0.3

Income tax provision, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 222 $ 310 $ 248 38.9% 38.9% 38.3%

The significant com pon ent of the provi s i on for incom e

t a xes for the year en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1999 and 1998

was a deferred tax provi s i on of $224 mill i on , $293 mill i on

and $231 mill i on , re s pectively. The provi s i on for incom e

t a xes for each of the ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1 9 9 9

and 1998 also ref l ects a current tax provi s i on (ben efit) in

the amount of $(2) mill i on , $17 mill i on and $17 mill i on ,

re s pectively, as the Com p a ny is in an altern a tive minimu m

tax po s i ti on for federal income tax purposes and pays curren t

s t a te and forei gn income tax.

Deferred income taxes ref l ect the net tax ef fects of tem-

pora ry d i f feren ces bet ween the carrying amounts of

a s s ets and liabi l i ties for financial reporting purposes and

the rel a ted amounts used for income tax purpo s e s .

Si gnificant com pon ents of the Com p a ny ’s deferred tax

l i a bi l i ties and assets as of Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999

a re as fo ll ows (in mill i on s ) :

2000 1999

Spare parts and supplies,

fixed assets and intangibles  . . . . . . . . . . $ 812 $ 590

Deferred gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67 61

Capital and safe harbor lease activity  . . . . 90 73

Other, net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 95 69

Gross deferred tax liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . 1,064 793

Accrued liabilities  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (223) (254)

Net operating loss carryforwards  . . . . . . . (366) (266)

Investment tax credit carryforwards . . . . . (45) (45)

Minimum tax credit carryforward  . . . . . . (43) (46)

Gross deferred tax assets  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (677) (611)

Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 263 263

Net deferred tax liability  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 650 445

Less: current deferred tax asset  . . . . . . . . . (137) (145)

Non-current deferred tax liability  . . . . . . . $ 787 $ 590

At Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , the Com p a ny had esti m a ted tax

n et opera ting losses (“NOLs”) of $1 bi ll i on for federa l

i n come tax purposes that wi ll ex p i re thro u gh 2021 and federa l

i nve s tm ent tax credit carryforw a rds of $45 mill i on that wi ll

ex p i re thro u gh 2001. Due to an own ership ch a n ge of t h e

Com p a ny on April 27, 1 9 9 3 , the ulti m a te uti l i z a ti on of t h e

Com p a ny ’s NOLs and inve s tm ent tax credits may be limited .

Ref l ecting this limitati on , the Com p a ny had a va lu a ti on

a ll ow a n ce of $263 mill i on at Decem ber 31, 2000 and 1999.
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The Com p a ny has con su m m a ted several tra n s acti on s ,

wh i ch re su l ted in the recogn i ti on of NOLs of t h e

Com p a ny ’s predece s s or. To the ex tent the Com p a ny were to

determine in the futu re that ad d i ti onal NOLs of t h e

Com p a ny ’s predece s s or could be recogn i zed in the accom-

p a nying con s o l i d a ted financial statem en t s , su ch ben ef i t

would redu ce the va lue ascri bed to ro ute s , ga tes and slots.

NOTE 12 � ACCRUALS FOR AIRCRAFT

RETIREMENTS AND EXCESS FACILITIES

During the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company made the

dec i s i on to accel era te the reti rem ent of six DC-10-30 airc ra f t

and other items in 1999 and the first half of 2000 and to

dispose of related excess inventory. In addition, the market

value of certain Boeing 747 aircraft no longer operated by

the Company had declined. As a result of these items and

certain other fleet-related items, the Company recorded a

fleet disposition/impairment loss of $81 million in the

fourth quarter of 1999. Approximately $52 million of the

$81 million charge related to the impairment of owned or

capital leased airc raft and rel a ted inven tory held for dispo s a l

with a carrying amount of $77 million. The remaining $29

million of the charge related primarily to costs expected to

be incurred related to the return of leased aircraft. As of

December 31,2000, the remaining accrual for the 1999 fleet

disposition/impairment loss totaled $8 million.

In August 1998, the Company announced that CMI

planned to accelerate the retirement of its four Boeing 747

aircraft by April 1999 and its remaining thirteen Boeing 727

aircraft by December 2000. In addition, Express accelerated

the reti rem ent of certain tu rboprop airc raft to the year 2000,

including its fleet of 32 EMB-120 turboprop aircraft, as

regi onal jets are acqu i red to rep l ace tu rboprop s . In con n ecti on

with its decision to accelerate the replacement of these air-

craft,the Company performed evaluations to determine, in

accord a n ce with SFAS 121, wh et h er futu re cash flows

(undiscounted and without interest charges) expected to

result from the use and eventual disposition of these aircraft

would be less than the aggregate carrying amount of these

aircraft and the related assets. As a result of the evaluation,

management determined that the estimated future cash

flows expected to be generated by these aircraft would be

less than their carrying amount,and therefore these aircraft

are impaired as defined by SFAS 121. Consequently, the

original cost basis of these aircraft and related items was

redu ced to ref l ect the fair market va lue at the date the dec i s i on

was made, resulting in a $59 million fleet disposition/

impairment loss. In determining the fair market value of

these assets, the Company considered recent transactions

i nvo lving sales of similar airc raft and market trends in airc ra f t

dispositions. The remaining $63 million of the fleet disposi-

tion/impairment loss includes cash and non-cash costs

related primarily to future commitments on leased aircraft

past the dates they will be removed from service and the

write-down of related inventory to its estimated fair market

value. The combined charge of $122 million was recorded in

the third quarter of 1998. As of December 31, 2000, the

remaining acc rual for the 1998 fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm en t

loss totaled $17 million.

The remaining balance of acc ruals for airc raft reti re-

m ents and excess fac i l i ties at Decem ber 31, 2000 rel a tes to

the 1994 acc rual for fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss and

u n deruti l i zed fac i l i ties of $29 mill i on .

Si gnificant activi ty rel a ted to these acc ruals du ring the

ye a rs en ded Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , 1999 and 1998 were limited

to cash paym ents incurred .

NOTE 13 � COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Con ti n ental has su b s t a n tial com m i tm ents for capital

expenditures, including for the acquisition of new aircraft.

As of December 31,2000, Continental had agreed to acquire

or lease a total of 86 Boeing jet aircraft through 2005. The

Com p a ny anti c i p a tes taking del ivery of 35 Boeing jet airc ra f t

in 2001. Continental also has options for an additional 105

a i rc raft (exerc i s a ble su bj ect to certain con d i ti on s ) . Th e

estimated aggregate cost of the Company’s firm commit-

ments for Boeing aircraft is approximately $4 billion.
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Con ti n ental curren t ly plans to finance its new Boei n g

a i rc raft with a com bi n a ti on of en h a n ced pass thro u gh tru s t

certi f i c a te s , lease equ i ty and other third - p a rty financing,

su bj ect to ava i l a bi l i ty and market con d i ti on s . As of

Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental had approx i m a tely $890

m i ll i on in financing arra n ged for su ch Boeing del iveri e s .

Con ti n ental also has com m i tm ents or let ters of i n tent for

b ack s top financing for approx i m a tely 23% of the anti c i p a ted

remaining acqu i s i ti on cost of f utu re Boeing del iveri e s . In

ad d i ti on , at Decem ber 31, 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental has firm com-

m i tm ents to purchase 26 spare en gines rel a ted to the new

Boeing airc raft for approx i m a tely $158 mill i on , wh i ch wi ll

be del ivera ble thro u gh Ma rch 2005. However, f u rt h er

financing wi ll be needed to satisfy the Com p a ny ’s capital

com m i tm ents for other airc raft and airc ra f t - rel a ted ex pen-

d i tu res su ch as en gi n e s , s p a re part s , s i mu l a tors and rel a ted

i tem s . Th ere can be no assu ra n ce that su f f i c i ent financing

wi ll be ava i l a ble for all airc raft and other capital ex pen d i tu re s

not covered by firm financing com m i tm en t s . Del iveries of

n ew Boeing airc raft are ex pected to increase airc raft ren t a l ,

depreciation and interest costs while generating cost savings

in the areas of m a i n ten a n ce , f u el and pilot tra i n i n g.

As of December 31,2000, Express had firm commitments

for 178 Embraer regi onal jets with opti ons for an ad d i ti on a l

100 Embraer regi onal jets exerc i s a ble thro u gh 2007.

Ex press anti c i p a tes taking del ivery of 41 regi onal jets in

2 0 0 1 . The esti m a ted cost of the Com p a ny ’s firm com m i t-

m ents for Embraer regi onal jets is approx i m a tely $3 bi ll i on .

Nei t h er Ex press nor Con ti n ental wi ll have any obl i ga ti on to

t a ke any su ch firm Embraer airc raft that are not financed

by a third party and leased to Con ti n en t a l .

Con ti n ental ex pects its cash out l ays for 2001 capital

ex pen d i tu re s , exclu s ive of f l eet plan requ i rem en t s , to aggrega te

a pprox i m a tely $326 mill i on , pri m a ri ly rel a ting to sof t w a re

a pp l i c a ti on and autom a ti on infra s tru ctu re proj ect s ,a i rc ra f t

m od i f i c a ti ons and mandatory mainten a n ce proj ect s ,p a s s en ger

terminal fac i l i ty improvem ents and of f i ce , m a i n ten a n ce ,

tel ecom mu n i c a ti ons and ground equ i pm en t .

Con ti n ental remains con ti n gen t ly liable until Decem ber

1 , 2 0 1 5 , on $196 mill i on of l on g - term lease obl i ga ti ons of

US Ai rw ays , In c . (“US Ai rw ays”) rel a ted to the East End

Terminal at LaGu a rdia Ai rport in New York . If US Ai rw ays

def a u l ted on these obl i ga ti on s , Con ti n ental could be

requ i red to cure the def a u l t , at wh i ch time it would have

the ri ght to occ u py the term i n a l .

Approx i m a tely 41% of the Com p a ny ’s em p l oyees are

covered by co ll ective bargaining agreem en t s . Th e

Com p a ny ’s co ll ective bargaining agreem ents with its CMI

f l i ght attendants (repre s en ting approx i m a tely 1% of t h e

Com p a ny ’s em p l oyees) became amen d a ble in June 2000.

The parties re ach ed a ten t a tive agreem en t , wh i ch was not

ra ti f i ed by the flight atten d a n t s . Nego ti a ti ons wi ll re su m e

in early 2001. The Com p a ny con ti nues to bel i eve that

mutu a lly accept a ble agreem ents can be re ach ed with su ch

em p l oyee s , a l t h o u gh the ulti m a te outcome of t h e

Com p a ny ’s nego ti a ti ons is unknown at this ti m e .

Legal Proceedings — On Ju ly 25, 2 0 0 0 , a Con corde airc ra f t

opera ted by Soc i ete Air Fra n ce (“Air Fra n ce”) cra s h ed

s h ort ly after takeof f f rom Fra n ce’s Ch a rles de G a u ll e

Ai rport , k i lling 114 people and de s troying the airc ra f t . Th e

i n terim inve s ti ga ti on con du cted by Fren ch aut h ori ties su g-

gests that one of the airc ra f t’s ti res bu rst and that porti on s of

the re su l ting debris stru ck the unders i de of a wing of t h e

a i rc raft wh i ch caused the ru ptu re of a fuel tank, l e ading to

a fire and the cra s h . In early Septem ber 2000, Con ti n en t a l

l e a rn ed that a small piece of m etal found on the ru nw ay

a f ter the Con corde took of f is bel i eved by the Fren ch

a ut h ori ties to have caused or con tri buted to the ti re failu re

and is su s pected by inve s ti ga tors to have come from a

Con ti n ental DC-10 airc raft that had taken of f on the same

ru nw ay a short time before the Con corde .

Several lawsuits invo lving Con ti n ental have been filed to

d a te in con n ecti on with the acc i den t , and Con ti n en t a l

a n ti c i p a tes that ad d i ti onal suits wi ll be filed against the

Com p a ny in the futu re . This pending liti ga ti on is in pre-
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l i m i n a ry stage s . Con ti n ental is coopera ting with Fren ch

and U. S . a ut h ori ties in the inve s ti ga ti on of the acc i den t .

Al t h o u gh the outcome of these suits or any futu re liti ga ti on

cannot be known at this ti m e , Con ti n en t a l ’s costs to defen d

these matters and, the Com p a ny bel i eve s , a ny po ten ti a l

l i a bi l i ty ex po su re are covered by insu ra n ce . Con s equ en t ly, t h e

Com p a ny does not ex pect this liti ga ti on or any ad d i ti on a l

suits that may arise from the acc i dent to have a materi a l

adverse ef fect on the Com p a ny ’s financial po s i ti on or

re sults of opera ti on s .

The Com p a ny and/or certain of its su b s i d i a ries are

defendants in va rious lawsu i t s , i n cluding suits rel a ting to

certain envi ron m ental cl a i m s , the Com p a ny ’s con s o l i d a ted

Plan of Reor ga n i z a ti on under Ch a pter 11 of the federa l

b a n k ru ptcy code wh i ch became ef fective on April 27, 1 9 9 3 ,

and proceed i n gs arising in the normal co u rse of bu s i n e s s .

While the outcome of these lawsuits and proceed i n gs can-

not be pred i cted with cert a i n ty and could have a materi a l

adverse ef fect on the Com p a ny ’s financial po s i ti on , re su l t s

of opera ti ons and cash flows , it is the op i n i on of m a n a ge-

m en t , a f ter con su l ting with co u n s el , that the ulti m a te dis-

po s i ti on of su ch suits wi ll not have a material adverse ef fect

on the Com p a ny ’s financial po s i ti on , re sults of opera ti on s

or cash flows .

NOTE 14 � RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The fo ll owing is a su m m a ry of s i gnificant rel a ted party

tra n s acti ons that occ u rred du ring 2000, 1999 and 1998,

o t h er than those discussed el s ewh ere in the No tes to

Con s o l i d a ted Financial Statem en t s .

In December 2000, the Company sold its remaining

investment in America West Holdings, a company in which

D avid Bon derm a n , a director and stock h o l der of t h e

Company, holds a significant interest. The Company and

Am erica West Ai rl i n e s , In c .( “Am erica We s t” ) , a su b s i d i a ry of

America West Holdings entered into a series of agreements

during 1994 related to code-sharing and ground handling

that have created substantial benefits for both airlines. The

services provided are considered normal to the daily opera-

tions of both airlines. As a result of these agreements,

Continental paid America West $28 million, $25 million

and $20 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively, and

America West paid Continental $33 million, $31 million

and $27 million in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

In Novem ber 2000, Con ti n ental en tered into a nu m ber

of a greem ents with Nort hwest and some of its affiliate s

u n der wh i ch it would rep u rchase most of its Class A com m on

s tock own ed by Nort hwe s t . See No te 16. In Novem ber

1 9 9 8 , the Com p a ny and Nort hwest Ai rl i n e s , In c .

( “ Nort hwest Ai rl i n e s” ) , began implem en ting a lon g - term

gl obal all i a n ce invo lving ex ten s ive code - s h a ri n g, f requ en t

f lyer rec i proc i ty and other coopera tive activi ti e s . The servi ce s

provi ded are con s i dered normal to the daily opera ti ons of

both airl i n e s . As a re sult of these activi ti e s , Con ti n en t a l

paid Nort hwest $10 mill i on in 2000 and $7 mill i on in 1999,

re s pectively, and Nort hwest paid Con ti n ental $14 mill i on

in 2000 and $9 mill i on in 1999, re s pectively.

Also in November 2000, Continental entered into an

agreement to pay 1992 Air, Inc. $10 million in cash for its

sale to Continental of its right of first offer to purchase the

shares of Class A common stock that the Company pur-

chased from Northwest.1992 Air, Inc.is an affiliate of David

Bonderman, one of Continental’s directors. See Note 16.

Du ring Decem ber 1999, Con ti n ental en tered into an

equ i pm ent sales agreem ent with Copa for $8 mill i on . Th e

re su l ting note receiva ble is paya ble in qu a rterly install-

m ents thro u gh October 2002. The servi ces provi ded are

con s i dered normal to the daily opera ti ons of both airl i n e s .

Copa paid Con ti n ental $8 mill i on in 2000 and $4 mill i on in

1 9 9 9 , and Con ti n ental paid Copa approx i m a tely $1 mill i on

in each of 2000 and 1999.

In con n ecti on with Con ti n en t a l ’s inve s tm ent in

Gu l fs tre a m , Con ti n ental purch a s ed from Gu l fs tre a m , a

ten - year $10 mill i on converti ble note , p aya ble in qu a rterly

i n s t a ll m ents of principal and interest totaling $0.4 mill i on .

Con ti n ental also purch a s ed a short - term $3 mill i on

s ec u red note , with interest paid qu a rterly. Du ring 2000 and
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1 9 9 9 , Con ti n ental paid Gu l fs tream $1 mill i on and $1 mill i on ,

re s pectively, and Gu l fs tream paid Con ti n ental $16 mill i on

and $13 mill i on , re s pectively, for servi ces con s i dered norm a l

to the daily opera ti ons of both airl i n e s .

Also du ring Decem ber 1999, u n der a sale and leaseb ack

a greem ent with Gu l fs tre a m , Ex press sold 25 Beech 1900-D

a i rc raft to Gu l fs tream in exch a n ge for Gu l fs tre a m’s

a s su m pti on of $81 mill i on in debt . Ex press is leasing these

a i rc raft from Gu l fs tream for peri ods ra n ging from ei ght to

23 mon t h s .

NOTE 15 � SEGMENT REPORTING

In form a ti on con cerning opera ting revenues by pri n c i p a l

geogra phic areas is as fo ll ows (in mill i on s ) :

2000 1999 1998

Domestic (U.S.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $6,835 $6,066 $5,596

Atlantic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,370 1,102 995

Latin America  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,022 860 769

Pacific . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 672 611 567

$9,899 $8,639 $7,927

The Company attributes revenue among the geographical

a reas based upon the ori gin and de s ti n a ti on of e ach fligh t

s egm en t . The Com p a ny ’s tangi ble assets consist pri m a ri ly

of f l i ght equ i pm en t , wh i ch is mobile ac ross geogra ph i c

m a rkets and, t h erefore , has not been all oc a ted . Con ti n en t a l

has one report a ble opera ting segm ent (air tra n s port a ti on ) .

NOTE 16 � SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On Novem ber 15, 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental en tered into a nu m ber

of a greem ents with Nort hwest and some of its affiliate s

u n der wh i ch it wo u l d , a m ong other things , rep u rch a s e

a pprox i m a tely 6.7 mill i on shares of Class A com m on stock

own ed by Nort hwe s t , reclassify all issu ed shares of Class A

com m on stock into Class B com m on stock , m a ke other

ad ju s tm ents to its corpora te and all i a n ce rel a ti onship wi t h

Nort hwest Ai rl i n e s , and issue to Nort hwest Ai rlines on e

s h a re of preferred stock , de s i gn a ted as Series B preferred

s tock (“Series B preferred stock”) with bl ocking ri ghts rel a t-

ing to certain ch a n ge of con trol tra n s acti ons invo lvi n g

Con ti n ental and certain matters rel a ting to Con ti n en t a l ’s

ri ghts plan. The tra n s acti ons cl o s ed on Ja nu a ry 22, 2 0 0 1 . Th e

con s i dera ti on paid to rep u rchase the Class A com m on stock

own ed by Nort hwest and to reclassify the issu ed Class A

com m on stock to Class B com m on stock wi ll be acco u n ted

for as an equ i ty tra n s acti on . Un der the agreem ents rel a ti n g

to the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on , Con ti n ental and Nort hwest agreed to

s eek dismissal of the anti trust liti ga ti on bro u ght by the U. S .

Dep a rtm ent of Ju s ti ce against Nort hwest and Con ti n en t a l ,

wh i ch dismissal was gra n ted on Ja nu a ry 22, 2 0 0 1 .

Repu rch a se of Sh a res of Class A Common Sto ck . On Ja nu a ry

2 2 , 2 0 0 1 , Con ti n ental rep u rch a s ed from Nort hwest and an

a f f i l i a te 6,685,279 shares of Con ti n ental Class A com m on

s tock for an aggrega te purchase pri ce of $ 4 5 0 m i ll i on in

cash (or approx i m a tely $67 per share ) .

The shares rep u rch a s ed repre s en ted approx i m a tely 77% of

the total nu m ber of s h a res of Class A com m on stock own ed

by Nort hwe s t , excluding shares su bj ect to a limited prox y

h eld by Nort hwe s t . This limited proxy term i n a ted upon the

closing of the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on . Af ter giving ef fect to the

rep u rchase and the recl a s s i f i c a ti on of the issu ed shares of

Class A com m on stock into Class B com m on stock ,

Nort hwe s t’s gen eral vo ting power with re s pect to

Con ti n en t a l , i n cluding Nort hwe s t’s ri ght to vo te cert a i n

s h a res under a limited prox y, was redu ced from approx i-

m a tely 59.6% to approx i m a tely 7.2%. This percen t a ge doe s

not inclu de the share of Series B preferred stock issu ed to

Nort hwest Ai rlines in the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on , wh i ch does not

h ave gen eral vo ting ri ghts but inste ad has a special class vo te

on certain ch a n ge of con trol tra n s acti ons as de s c ri bed bel ow.
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Re cl a s s i f i c a tion of Sh a res of Class A Common Sto ck . At the

ef fective time of the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on , the rem a i n i n g

1,975,945 shares of Class A com m on stock own ed by

Nort hwest that Con ti n ental did not purch a s e , as well as all

o t h er issu ed shares of Class A com m on stock , were recl a s-

s i f i ed into Class B com m on stock at an exch a n ge ra te of

1.32 shares of Class B com m on stock per share of Class A

com m on stock .

Is su a n ce of S eries B Preferred Sto ck . In con n ecti on with the

tra n s acti ons de s c ri bed above , i n cluding the amen d m ent of

the master all i a n ce agreem en t , Con ti n ental issu ed to

Nort hwest Ai rlines one share of Series B preferred s tock for

con s i dera ti on of $100 in cash. The Series B preferred stock

gives Northwest Airlines the right to vote,as a separate cl a s s ,

du ring the term of the master all i a n ce agreem ent or, i f e a rl i er,

u n til the Series B preferred stock becomes redeem a bl e , on :

■ a ny amen d m ent to arti cle seven of Con ti n en t a l ’s certi f i c a te

of i n corpora ti on wh i ch rel a te s , in gen era l , to the requ i re-

m en t to obtain the approval of the holder of the Series B

preferred stock to amend Con ti n en t a l ’s ri ghts agreem en t ;

■ certain business com bi n a ti ons and similar ch a n ge of

con trol tra n s acti ons invo lving Con ti n ental and a third

p a rty major air carri er with re s pect to wh i ch the stock-

h o l ders of Con ti n ental are en ti t l ed to vo te ;

■ a ny divi dend or distri buti on of a ll or su b s t a n ti a lly all of

Con ti n en t a l ’s airline asset s ; a n d

■ certain reor ga n i z a ti ons and re s tru ctu ring tra n s acti on s

i nvo lving Con ti n en t a l .

Except for the ri ght to vo te on any amen d m ent to

Con ti n en t a l ’s certi f i c a te of i n corpora ti on that wo u l d

advers ely affect the Series B preferred stock , and on any

o t h er matter as may be requ i red by law, the Series B preferred

s tock does not have any other vo ting ri gh t s .

Pu rch a se of Ri ght of Fi rst Of fer. In con n ecti on with the

recapitalization, Continental paid 1992 Air, Inc.$10 million

in cash for its sale to Con ti n ental of its ri ght of f i rst of fer to

p u rchase the shares of Class A com m on stock that t h e

Com p a ny purch a s ed from Nort hwest (wh i ch ri ght term i n a ted

i m m ed i a tely after the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on ) . 1992 Ai r, In c . is an

a f f i l i a te of D avid Bon derm a n , one of Con ti n en t a l ’s directors .

St a n d s ti ll Agre em en t . In con n ecti on with the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on ,

Nort hwest and certain of its affiliates have en tered into a

s t a n d s ti ll agreem ent with the Com p a ny that con t a i n s

s t a n d s ti ll and con du ct re s tri cti ons that are su b s t a n ti a lly

similar to those previ o u s ly con t a i n ed in the corpora te gov-

ern a n ce agreem ent that had been in place bet ween the parti e s .

Un der the agreem en t , Nort hwest agreed to vo te neutra lly

a ll of Con ti n en t a l ’s com m on stock own ed by it after the

rec a p i t a l i z a ti on , except that Nort hwest wi ll be free to vo te

its shares in its discretion with respect to a change of control

of the Company, as defined in the Series B preferred s tock

certi f i c a te of de s i gn a ti on s , and wi ll vo te neutra lly or as

recom m en ded by Con ti n en t a l ’s boa rd of d i rectors wi t h

respect to the election of directors. The standstill agreement

provides that Northwest will be released from its obligations

i f Con ti n ental publ i cly announces that it is see k i n g, or has

en tered into an agreem ent wi t h , a third party to acqu i re a

m a j ori ty of Con ti n en t a l ’s vo ting sec u ri ties or all or su b s t a n-

ti a lly a ll of Con ti n en t a l ’s airline asset s .

Amendment of the Rights Agreement. Con ti n ental has also

a m en ded its ri ghts agreem ent to take into acco u n t , a m on g

o t h er things , the ef fects of the rec a p i t a l i z a ti on and to el i m i n a te

Nort hwe s t’s status as an exem pt pers on that would not tri gger

the provi s i ons of the ri ghts agreem en t .
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NOTE 17 � QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Un a u d i ted su m m a ri zed financial data by qu a rter for 2000 and 1999 is as fo ll ows (in mill i on s , except per share data):

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2000
Operating revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,277 $ 2,571 $ 2,622 $ 2,429
Operating income  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 54 279 254 97
Nonoperating income (expense),net  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (31) (29) (30) (23)
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 149 135 44

Earnings per common share:
Income before extraordinary charge (a) . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.21 $ 2.52 $ 2.29 $ 0.74
Extraordinary charge,net of tax (a)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (0.08) (0.03) —

Net income (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.21 $ 2.44 $ 2.26 $ 0.74

Earnings per common share assuming dilution:
Income before extraordinary charge (a)  . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.21 $ 2.46 $ 2.24 $ 0.70
Extraordinary charge, net of tax (a)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . — (0.07) (0.03) —

Net income (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.21 $ 2.39 $ 2.21 $ 0.70

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

1999
Operating revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,042 $ 2,181 $ 2,264 $ 2,152
Operating income (loss)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 153 247 202 (2)
Income before cumulative effect

of accounting changes  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 85 132 104 167
Cumulative effect of accounting changes:

Start-up costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (6) — — —
Sale of frequent flyer miles  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (27) — — —

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52 132 104 167

Earnings per common share:
Income before cumulative effect

of accounting changes (a)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.25 $ 1.85 $ 1.47 $ 2.46
Cumulative effect of accounting

changes,net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.48) — — —

Net income (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.77 $ 1.85 $ 1.47 $ 2.46

Earnings per common share assuming dilution:
Income before cumulative effect

of accounting changes (a)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.13 $ 1.73 $ 1.44 $ 2.42
Cumulative effect of accounting

changes, net of tax  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.42) — — —

Net income (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 0.71 $ 1.73 $ 1.44 $ 2.42

(a) The sum of the four quarterly earnings per share amounts does not agree with the earnings per share as calculated for the full year due to the fa ct that the

full year calculation uses a weighted average number of shares based on the sum of the four quarterly weighted average shares divided by four quarters.
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Du ring the fo u rth qu a rter of 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental recorded

a $6 mill i on gain ($9 mill i on pre-tax) on the sale of a ri gh t

of f i rst refusal and the Com p a ny ’s remaining inve s tm ent in

Am erica West Ho l d i n gs .

Du ring the third qu a rter of 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental rep u r-

ch a s ed the rem a i n der of its 91⁄2% sen i or unsec u red note s ,i n

addition to the early extinguishment of other debt, resulting

in a $2 mill i on ex tra ord i n a ry ch a r ge (net of i n come tax

ben efit) for early debt rep aym en t .

Du ring the second qu a rter of 2 0 0 0 , Con ti n ental rep u r-

ch a s ed $188 mill i on of its 91⁄2% sen i or unsec u red note s , i n

addition to the early extinguishment of other debt, resulting

in a $4 mill i on ex tra ord i n a ry ch a r ge (net of i n come tax

ben efit) for early debt rep aym en t .

Du ring the first qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 , Con ti n ental recorded

a $6 mill i on cumu l a tive ef fect of a ch a n ge in acco u n ti n g

pri n c i p l e , n et of t a x , rel a ted to the wri te - of f of p i l o t

training co s t s .

In ad d i ti on , du ring the first qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 , Con ti n en t a l

recorded a $12 mill i on gain ($20 mill i on pre-tax) on the

sale of a porti on of the Com p a ny ’s interest in Equ a n t .

Du ring the fo u rth qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 , the Com p a ny

ch a n ged its met h od of acco u n ting for the sale of m i l e a ge

credits under its frequent flyer program. Therefore, effective

Ja nu a ry 1, 1 9 9 9 , the Com p a ny recorded a $27 mill i on

c u mu l a tive ef fect of this ch a n ge in acco u n ting pri n c i p l e ,

n et of t a x .

Du ring the fo u rth qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 , Con ti n ental recorded

a $182 mill i on gain ($297 mill i on pre-tax) on the sale of i t s

i n terest in A M A D E U S and a $6 mill i on net gain ($9 mill i on

pre-tax on other asset sales, i n cluding a porti on of its intere st

in Equ a n t ) .

Al s o, du ring the fo u rth qu a rter of 1 9 9 9 , Con ti n en t a l

recorded a fleet dispo s i ti on / i m p a i rm ent loss of $50 mill i on

($81 mill i on pre - t a x ) .
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Continental Airlines, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December

31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated statements of

operations, common stockholders’ equity and cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2000.

These financial statem ents are the re s pon s i bi l i ty of t h e

Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We con du cted our audits in accord a n ce with auditing standard s

generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain re a s on a ble assu ra n ce

about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-

s t a tem en t . An audit inclu des ex a m i n i n g, on a test basis, evi den ce

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state-

m en t s . An audit also inclu des assessing the acco u n ting pri n c i p l e s

used and significant estimates made by management,as well as

eva lu a ting the overa ll financial statem ent pre s en t a ti on . We bel i eve

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our op i n i on , the con s o l i d a ted financial statem ents referred

to above present fairly, in all material respects,the consolidated

financial position of the Company at December 31, 2000 and

1999, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December

31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States.

As discussed in No te 1 to the con s o l i d a ted financial statem en t s ,

effective January 1, 1999, the Company changed its method of

acco u n ting for the sale of m i l e a ge credits to parti c i p a ting partn ers

in its frequent flyer program.

Houston, Texas

January 16, 2001 

except for Note 16, as to which the date is January 22, 2001

Report of Independent Auditors
The Board of Directors and Stockholders o f Continental Airlines, Inc.

Continental Airlines, Inc.is responsible for the preparation and

integrity of the financial information presented in this Annual

Report. The accompanying financial statements have been pre-

p a red in accord a n ce with acco u n ting principles gen era lly accepted

in the United States and reflect certain judgments and estimates

of management.

The Com p a ny maintains a sys tem of i n ternal con trols to pro-

vi de re a s on a ble assu ra n ce that its financial records can be rel i ed

u pon in the prep a ra ti on of financial statem ents and that its asset s

a re safeg u a rded against loss or unaut h ori zed use. The Com p a ny ’s

i n ternal audit program mon i tors the ef fectiveness of the intern a l

con trols and recom m ends po s s i ble improvem ents to managem en t

and the Boa rd of Di rectors . E rnst & Young LLP, i n depen den t

a u d i tors ,a re en ga ged to audit the Com p a ny ’s financial statem en t s .

E rnst & Young obtains an understanding of the internal con tro l

s tru ctu re and con du cts the tests and other auditing procedu re s

t h ey con s i der nece s s a ry to ren der an op i n i on on the financial state-

m ents being audited . The Audit Com m i t tee of the Boa rd of

Di rectors , com po s ed en ti rely of d i rectors not em p l oyed by the

Com p a ny and who meet the indepen den ce cri teria now requ i red

by the New York Stock Exchange, provides oversight of the

financial reporting process thro u gh regular meeti n gs with man-

a gem en t , the Com p a ny ’s internal auditors and Ernst & Yo u n g.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any

internal control system, including the possibility of human

error and the circ u mven ti on or overriding of con tro l s .

Accord i n gly, even an ef fective internal con trol sys tem can provi de

only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement

prep a ra ti on . Fu rt h erm ore , the ef fectiveness of an internal con tro l

system can change with circumstances.

Gordon M. Bethune
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Lawrence W. Kellner
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Report of Management
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Stockholder Information

HEADQUARTERS
Con ti n ental Ai rl i n e s , In c .

1600 Smith Street

Ho u s ton , TX 77002

(713) 324-5000

INVESTOR INFORMATION
To obtain a Form 10-K or other 

financial inform a ti on , visit the Com p a ny ’s 

web s i te at: w w w. con ti n en t a l . com

or wri te :

Inve s tor Rel a ti on s

Con ti n ental Ai rl i n e s , In c .

P. O. Box 4607

Ho u s ton , TX 77210-4607

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Mellon Investor Services LLC

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, NJ  07660

Attn: Shareholder Services

(888) 711-6201

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
E rnst & Young LLP

One Ho u s ton Cen ter

1221 Mc Ki n n ey

Ho u s ton , TX 77010-2007

COMMON STOCK
On Ja nu a ry 22, 2 0 0 1 , Con ti n ental rep u rch a s ed for $450 mill i on

a pprox i m a tely 6.7 mill i on shares of its Class A com m on stock

f rom Nort hwest Ai rlines Corpora ti on and its affiliate s . Also 

at that ti m e ,Con ti n en t a l ’s stock h o l ders approved a rec a p i t a l i z a ti on

p u rsuant to wh i ch each share of Class A com m on stock was

recl a s s i f i ed into 1.32 shares of Class B com m on stock . As a

re su l t , Con ti n ental now has a single class of com m on stock

o utstanding ( Class B).

Con ti n en t a l ’s Class B com m on stock trades on the New York

S tock Exch a n ge under the sym bol CAL. As of Febru a ry 1, 2 0 0 1 ,

t h ere were 53,528,119 shares of Class B com m on stock out-

s t a n d i n g, with approx i m a tely 16,452 holders of record .

Ho l ders of Class B com m on stock are en ti t l ed to one vo te

per share on all matters su bm i t ted to a vo te of com m on stock-

h o l ders , su bj ect to re s tri cti ons governing vo ting ri ghts of

h o l ders who are not Un i ted States citi zen s .The Com p a ny has not

paid cash divi dends on its com m on stock and has no curren t

i n ten ti on to do so. Certain of the Com p a ny ’s credit agreem en t s

and inden tu res limit the abi l i ty of the Com p a ny and certain of

its su b s i d i a ries to pay cash divi den d s .

Bel ow are the high and low sale pri ces for the Class B and

Class A com m on stock as reported on the New York Stock

Exch a n ge for 2000 and 1999:

Class B Class A

2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9 2 0 0 0 1 9 9 9

Hi gh Low Hi gh Low Hi gh Low Hi gh Low

F i rst Quarter $ 4 65⁄8 $ 2 9 $ 4 111⁄1 6 $ 3 0 $ 4 61⁄2 $ 2 91⁄1 6 $ 4 415⁄1 6 $ 3 41⁄8

Second Quarter $ 5 0 $ 3 75⁄8 $ 4 8 $ 3 67⁄1 6 $ 4 91⁄8 $ 3 83⁄1 6 $ 4 8 $ 3 613⁄1 6

Th i rd Quarter $ 5 413⁄1 6 $ 4 31⁄8 $ 4 49⁄1 6 $ 3 15⁄8 $ 5 43⁄4 $ 4 33⁄8 $ 4 43⁄8 $ 3 113⁄1 6

Fo u rth Quarter $ 5 49⁄1 6 $ 4 01⁄2 $ 4 43⁄8 $ 3 23⁄8 $ 6 81⁄2 $ 4 01 3⁄1 6 $ 4 411⁄1 6 $ 3 23⁄1 6

CLASS B AND CLASS A STOCK PRICES
FOR 2000 AND 1999




